Rep30

From: Wolf, Jimmy

Sent: Thursday, March 16, 2017 11:49 AM

To: Elizabeth Cassell

Subject: Amendments :

Attachments: ZEN amendment - effect of sale of zero-emissions nuclear resource.docx; ZEN amendment 6

~ Limit filing to qualify as ZEN resource docx; ZEN amendment 5 - Commitments maintained
on sale.docx; ZEN amendment 3 - Corporate headquarters.docx; ZEN amendment - 16-year
program.docx; ZEN amendment - 8-11 year review by PUCO incl| federal law impact.docx;
ZEN amendment - employment levels {similarly-situated defined).docx; ZEN amendment 4 -
Retail rate vs June 2015 and deferral.docx

Good Morning Liz,

Attached are copies of amendments that First Energy sent to our office based on the list Representative Seitz sent gver
to your office last Thursday. Also, Representative Seitz was wondering if Senator Eklund would be available to join him
and Ty Pine for a phone call about these draft amendments tomorrow at 3 PM?

Best,

Jimmy Wolf

Legisfative Aide to Representative Bill Seitz
30" House District

614.466.8258
Jimmy.wolf@ohiohouse.gov
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As Reported by

Topic: Zerc-Emissions Nuclear Rescurce Program; efifect of sale of
zero—-emissions nuclear resource

moved to amend as follows:

In line 258, delete "All" and insert “ (A} Except as provided
in divisicn (B) of this section, all”

Between lines 269-270, insert:

(B) If the owner as of December 31, 2016 of a zero—-emissicns
nuclear resource sells or transfers the rero-emissions nuclear
resource, the public utilitises commission shall reduce the number
of =zero-emissions nuclear credits to be purchased from that
resource during the program pericd and, 1f necessary, successive
program periods to reflect an adjustment equal.to one-half of the
dollar amcunt of any net proceeds available after the payment or
provision for the seller’s known obligations, but in no instance
shall this adjustment apply to a sale or transfer under the United
States Bankrupfcy Code, including, but nct limited to, sections
363 and 1123, 11 U.S5.C. §§ 363 and 1123.

The moticn was agreed to.

£04228701.DOCK:1 } 1



As Reported by

Topic: Zero-Emissions Nuclear Resocurce Program; period to file as
zero-emissions nuclear resource

meved to amend as follows:

In line 124, afzer "period" delete the remainder of the
sentence through the end of line 125.

Delete lines 195-2C0

In line 206, after “rescurce.” insert “The nuclear energy
resource shall submit an environmental study showing that the
respurce meets the criteria under section 4928.754 of the Revised
Code.”

The motion was agreed to.

{04224920.DOCX;1 } 1




As Reported by

Topic: Zero-Emissions Nuclear Resource Program; provisions apply
upon sale

moved to amend as follows:

At the end of line 215, insert “The provisions of sections
£928.75 through 4928.753x shall apply to any person to which zero-
emissions nuclear resources are sold, assigned, transferred, or
conveyed.”

The metion was agreed to.

{64223367.DOCX:1 } 1



As Reported by

Topic: Zero~Emissions Nuclear Resocurce  Program; corporate
headguarters

moved to amend as follows:

Between lines 287 and 288, insexrt:

"Sec. 4928.7533. During each program period in which a zero-
emissions nuclear resource receives payment for credits under
section 4928.7526 of the Revised Ccde, an entity that owns oz
operates that zerco-emissions nuclear resocurce and that has 1its
corporate headguarters located in Ohic shall continue to maintain
its corporate headqguarters in Ohio.

The motion was agreed to.

{04222391.DOCX:1 } 1




As Reported by

Topic: Zero-Emissions Nuclear Resource Program; length of program

moved to amend as follows:

In line 116, after "section" insert "and terminating on the
last day of the eighth program period”

The motion was agreed to.

{04226987.D0CK:1 } 1



As Reported by

Topic: Zero-Emissions Nuclear Resource Program; five-year review
by Public Utilities Commission cf Ohio

moved to amend as follows:

Between lines 297 and 298 insert:

"Sec. 4928.7533. During the sixth and eleventh years of the
zerc-emissicns nuclear resource program, the Public Utilities
Commission shall evaluate the price of the zerco-emissions nuclear
credit established under section 4928.7520 of the Revised Code for
the purpose of discerning whether the program is achieving the
policy goals in secticn 4928.751 of the Revised Code and whether
those policy goals are Dbeing met through other federal
environmental laws, programs, rules or regulations or through
amendments to the federal tax code. Upon the conclusion of its
evaluation, the commission shall report the results o¢f its
evaluation to the standing cocmmittees of both houses of the general
assembly that have primary jurisdiction regarding public utility
legislation. In no case shall the zero-emissicons nuclear resource
program terminate earlier than the last day of the second progran

period.

In line 7 cf the title, delete “and”

{04226688.DOCX.2 } 1



In line 7 of the title, after ™4828.7532” dinsert “, and
4928.7533”

The moticn was agreed to.

(04226688.DOCX:2 } 2



As Reported by

Topic: Zerc-Emissicns Nuclear Resource Program; employment levels

moved to amend as follows:

Between lines 287 and 288, insert:

"Sec. 4928.7533. (A) For purposés of this section:

(1) “Employment levels” means the number of full-time
employees regularly providing services at the location of a zero-
emissions nuclear resource.

(2) "Full-time employee" means an individual who is employed
for consideration for at least thirty-five hours per week, or who
renders any other standard of éervice generally accepted by custom
or specified by contract as full-time employment.

(B} During each prcgram periocd in which a =zero-emissions
nuclear resource receives payment for zero-emissions nuclear
credits under section 4928.7526 of the Revised Code, the employment
levels at that zero-emissions nuclear resource shall centinue to
be similar to that of nuclear energy resources constructed prior
to 1990 in the United States with the same reactor type, similar
nameplate capacity and single-unit locaticn.

The motion was agreed to.

{04227063.DOCX;1 } 1



As Reported by

Topic: Zerc-Emissions Nuclear Resource Program; retail rate
deferral :

moved to amend as follows:

At the end of line 287, insert “The nonbypassble charge shall
be designed such that no retail electric service customer shall
have an increase resulting from the nonbypassable rider in its
total retail electric service bill of more than five percent as
compared to June 2012. The participating electric distribution
utility shall defer as a regulatory asset an amount egual to the
revenue reducticn resulting from,fhe five percent limit on customer
bill increases and recover the deferral plus carrying charges
through a nonbypassable c¢harge assessed over a twelve-month
periocd.”

The motion was agreed to.

£04223336 DOCX:1 } 1




As Reported by

Topic: Zero-kEmissions Nuclear Resource Program; length of program

moved to amend as follows:

In line 116, after "section" insert "and terminating on the
last day of the eighth program period”

The moticn was agreed to.

{04226987.DOCX:1 } 1



As Reporzed by

Topic: Zero-Emissions Nuclear Rescurce Program; employment levels

moved to amend as follows:

Between lines 287 and 288, insert:

"Sec. 4928.7533. (A) For purposes of this section:

(1) “Employment levels” means the number of full-time
employees regularly providing services at the location of a zero-
emissions nuclear resource.

(2) "Full-time employee™ means an individual who is employed
for consideration for at least thirty-five hours per week, or who
renders any other standard of service generally accepted by custon
or specified by contract as full-time employment.

(B) During each program pericd in which a zero-emissions
nuclear resource receives payment for zero-emissions nuclear
credits under section 4928.752¢ of the Revised Code, the employment
levels at that zero-emissions nuclear resource shall continue to
be similar te that of nuclear energy resources constructed prior
to 19890 in the United States with the same reactor type, similar
nameplate capacity and single-unit location.

The motion was agreed to.

{04227063.D0CX:1 } 1



As Reported by

Topic: Zero-Fmissions Nuclear Resocurce Program; corporate
headgquarters

moved to amend as follows:

Between lines 287 and 288, insert:

"Sec. 4928.7533. During each program period in which a zero-
emissicns nuclear rescource receives payment for credits under
section 4928.7526 of the Revised Code, an entity that owns or
operates that zero-emissions nuclear resource and that has its
corporate headquarters locataed in Ohio shall continue to maintain
its cor?oraﬁe héadquartéfs in Chio.

The motion was agread to.

[04222301 DOCK;1 3 1
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Rep30

From: Pine, Ty <tpine@firstenergycorp.com>

Sent: Friday, March 17, 2017 8:32 AM

To: Rep30; John Ekiund - Calfee, Halter & Griswold LLP {JEklund@Calfee.com); Seitz, William
Subject: FW: ZEN Amendments

Attachments: ZEN amendment - 16-year program.docx; ZEN amendment - employment levels (similarly-

situated defined).docx; ZEN amendment 3 - Corporate headquarters.docx; ZEN amendment 6
- Limit filing to qualify as ZEN resource.docx; ZEN amendment - 6-11 year review by PUCO
incl federal law impact.docx; ZEN amendment 4 - Retail rate vs June 2015 and deferral.docx;
ZEN amendment 5 - Commitments maintained on sale docx; ZEN amendment - effect of sale
of zero-emissions nuclear resource.docx; FE Comments to LSC 3 3 17 Draft - 3 6 17.docx

Gentlemen,

So we are working with the same set of amendments, below are alf of the amendments we submitted for your
consideration. Note that some of these have been altered from the ones submitted last Friday, while others are new.

Mike Dowling, Joel Bailey and some technical folks will join us for our call at 3PM so that we are able to address any
guestions that arise. As you know, we are very eager to get a bill introduced next week.

Thanks.

From: Bingaman, Bradley A

Sent: Thursday, Marcn 16, 2017 5:09 PM
To: Pine, Ty <tpine @firstenergycorp.com>
Subject: ZEN Amendments

Ty,

Not sure if this will work on receipt but | tried to add the attachments to the body of the email rather than the message

bar above.

16 year program

Commission review

Employment levels

Rate impact



Headgquarters

Commitments maintained on sale

One time ZEN designation

Fffect of Sale

FE Recent edits to LSC draft re environmental requirements

Bradley A. Bingaman | Associate General Counsel | FirstEnergy
(330) 384-5947 | bbingaman@firstenergyeorp.com

The information contained in this message is intended only for the personal and confidential use of the
recipient(s) named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or an agent '
responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this
document in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution, or copying of this message is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify us immediately, and delete the
original message.
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Rep30

From: Rep30 |
Sent: Friday, March 17, 2017 8:52 AM

To: ‘Seitz, William'

Subject: FW: ZEN Amendments

Attachments: ZEN amendment - 16-year program.decx; ZEN amendment - employment levels (similarly-

situated defined).docx; ZEN amendment 3 - Corporate headquarters.docx; ZEN amendment 6
- Limit filing to qualify as ZEN resource.docx; ZEN amendment - 6-11 year review by PUCO

incl federal law impact.docx; ZEN amendment 4 - Retail rate vs June 2015 and deferral.docx; :
ZEN amendment 5 - Commitments maintained on sale.docx; ZEN amendment - effect of sale
of zero-emissions nuclear resource.docx; FE Commenis to LSC 3 3 17 Draft- 3 6 17.docx

See enclosed from Ty Pine.

From: Pine, Ty [mailto:tpine@firstenergycorp.com]

Sent: Friday, March 17, 2017 8:32 AM

To: Rep30 <Rep30@ohiohouse.gov>; John Eklund - Calfee, Halter & Griswold LLP {JEklund @Calfee.com)
<JEklund@Calfee.com>; Seitz, William <willlam.seitz@dinsmore.com>

Subject: FW: ZEN Amendments

Gentlemen,

So we are working with the same set of amendments, below are all of the amendments we submitted for your
consideration. Note that some of these have been altered from the ones submitted last Friday, while others are new.

Mike Dowling, loel Bailey and some technical folks will join us for our call at 3PM so that we are able to address any i
guestions that arise. As you know, we are very eager to get a bill introduced next week. )

Thanks.

From: Bingaman, Bradley A

Sent: Thursday, March 16, 2017 5:09 PM
To: Pine, Ty <tpine@firstenergycorp.com>
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

Headquarters

Commitments maintained on sale

One time ZEN designation

Effect of Sale

FE Recent edits ta LSC draft re environmental requirements

Bradley A. Bingaman'| Associate General Counsel | Firstinergy
(330) 384-5947 | bbingaman@firstenergyeo

The information contained in this message is intended only for the personal and confidential use of the
recipient(s) named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or an agent
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



Wolf, Jimmy

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Brian,

Wolf, Jimmy

Friday, March 17, 2017 9:48 AM

Brian Malachowsky

ZEN Sub Bill

ZEN amendment - 16-year program.docx; ZEN amendment - employment levels {similarly-
situated defined). docx; ZEN amendment 3 - Corporate headquarters.docx; ZEN amendment &
- Limit filing to qualify as ZEN resource.docx; ZEN amendment - 8-11 year review by FUCO
incl federal law impact.docx; ZEN amendment 4 - Retail rate vs June 2015 and deferral.docx;
ZEN amendment 5 - Commitments maintained on sale.docx; ZEN amendment - effect of sale
of zero-emissions nuclear resource.docx

| apologize for this, but could you please disregard the amendments | sent to you yesterday and use these attached to
draft a -2 verision of the ZEN bill you have been working on? '

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Best,

Jimmy Wolf

Legislative Aide to Representative Bill Seitz

30" House District

614.466.8258

Jimmy.wolf@ohiohouse.gov



As Reported by

Topic: Zero-Emissions Nuclear Resource Program; period to file as
zero-emissions nuclear resource

moved to amend as follows:

In line 124, after "period" delete the remainder of the
sentence through the end of line 125.

Delete lines 195-20C

In line 206, after “resource.” insert “The nuclear energy
resource shall submit an environmental study showing that the
resource meets the criteria under section 4928.754 of the Revissad
Code.”

The moticn was agreed to.

{04224920DOCK:1 } 1



As Reported by

Topic: Zero-Emissions Nuclear Resource Program; five-year review
by Public Utilities Commission of Ohic '

moved To amend as follows:

Between lines 2987 and 298 insert:

"Sec. 4928.7533. During the sixth and eleventh years of the
zero-emissions nuclear resource program, the Public Utilities
Commission shall evaluate the price of the zero-emissions nuclear
credit established under section 4928.7520 c¢f the Revised Code for
the purpose of discerning whether the program is achieving the
policy goals in section 4528.751 of the Revised Code and whether
those policy geals are being met through other federal
environmental laws, programs, rules or regulations or through
amendments to the federal tax code. Upcn the conclusion of its
evaluation, the ccommissicn shall report the resulits of its
evaluation to the standing committees of both houses of the general
assembly that have primary jurisdiction regarding public utility
legislation. In nc case shall the zero-emissions nuclear resource
program terminate earlier than the last day of the second program

period.

In line 7 of the title, delete “and”

{04226688.DOCX2 } 1



In line 7 of the title, after %“4928.7532” insert “, and
4928.7533"

The motion was agreed to.

{04226688.DOCK2 } 2



As Reported by

Topic: Zero-Emissions Nuclear Resource Program; five-year review
by Public Utilities Commission of OChio

moved to amend as follows:

Between lines 297 and 298 insert:

"Sec. 4928.7533. During the sixth and eleventh years of the
zero-emissicns nuclear rescurce program, the Public Utilities
Commission shall evaluate the price of the zero-emissiocns nuclear
credit established undsr section 4928.7520 of the Revised Code for
the purpose of discerning whether the program is achieving the
policy geals in section 4928.751 of the Revised Code and whether
those policy gecals are Dbeing met through other federai
environmental laws, programs, rules or regulations or through
amendments fto the federal tax code. Upon the conclusion of its
evaluation, the commission shall report the results of its
evaluation te the standing committees of both houses of the general
assembly that have primary jurisdiction regarding public utility
legislation. In no case shall the zerc-emissionsg nuclear resource
program terminate earlier than the last day of the second program

pericd.

In line 7 of the title, delete “and”

(04226688 DOCX;2 } 1



W

In line 7 of the title, after “4928.7532” insert , and

4528.75337

The motion was agreed to.

{04226688.DOCX;2 } 2



As Reported by

Topic: Zerc-Emissions Nuclear Resource Program; retail rate
deferral

moved te amend as follows:

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
compared to June 2015. The participating electric distribution
utility. shall defer as.a regulatory asset an amount egual toe the
revenue reduction resulting from the five percent limit on customer
bill increases and recover the deferral plus carrying charges
through a nonbypassable charge assessed over a twelve-month
period.”

The meotion was agreed to.

{04223356.DOCX;1 } 1



As Reported by

Topic: Zero-Emissions Nuclear Resource Program; provisions apply
upon sale

moved to amend as follows:

At the end of line 215, insert “The provisions of sections
4928.75 through 4828.753x shall apply to any person to which zero-
emissions nuclear resources are sold, assigned, transferred, or

conveyed.”

The moticon was agreed to.

{04223367.D0OCK;1 } _ 1



As Reported by

Topic: Zero-Emissions Nuclear Resource Program; effect of sale of
zero-emissions nuclear resource

moved to aménd as follows:

In line 258, delete "ALL" and insert “(A) Except as provided
in division (B} of this section, all”

Between lines 269-270, insert:

(B} TIf the owner as of December 31, 2016 of a zerc-emissions
nuclear resource sells or transfers the zero-emissions nuclear
resource, the public utilities commission shall reduce the number
of zero-emissions nuclear credits to be purchased from that
resource during the program periocd and, 1f necessary, successive
program pericds to reflect an adjustment equal to one-half of the
dollar amount of any net proceeds available after the payment or
provision for the seller’s known obligations, but in no instance
shall this adjustment apply tc a sale or transfer under the United
States Bankruptcy Code, including, but not limited to, sections
363 and 1123, 11 U.S.C. 8§ 363 and 1123.

The motion was agreed to.

{04228701.DOCX;1 } 1



Reviewed As To Form By
Legislative Service Commission

I 132_0723-1
132nd General Assembhly
Regular Session . B. No.
2017-2018
ABILL

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF OHIO:

4928.
4928,
4928,
4928.
4928.

To amend section 4928.02 and to enact sections
4928.75, 4928.751, 4928.752, 4828.753, 4928.754,
4928.755, 4928.756, 4328.757, 4828.7510,
4928.7511, 4928.7513, 4928.7514, 4928.7515,
4928.7520, 4928.7521, 4928.7522, 4928.7523,
4928.7524, 4928.7525, 4928.7526, 4928.7527,
4928.7530, and 4928.7532 of the Revised Code
regarding the zero-emissions nuclsar resource

program.

Section 1. That section 4828.02 be amended and sections
75, 4828.751, 4928.752, 49228.753, 4928.754, 4928.755,

756, 4928.757, 4828.7510, 4928.7511, 4928.7513, 4928.7514,
7515, 4928.7520, 4928.7521, 4928.7522, 4928.7523,

7524, 4828,7525, 4928.7526, £928.7527, 4928.7530, and

7532 of the Revised Code be enacted to read as follows:

Sec. 48928.02. Tt is the policy of this state to do the

following throughout this state:

Nrficyu3nibuniphtodmltO
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.B. No,
1 132 0723-1

(A} Ensure the availability to consumers of adequate,
reliable, safe, efficient, nondiscriminatory, and reascnably

priced retail electric service;

{B) Ensure the availability of unbundled and comparable
retail electric service that provides consumers with the
supplier, price, terms, conditions, and guality cptions they

alect to meet their respective needs;

{(C} Ensure diversity of eleetrieity—the feollowing:

{1l) Electricity supplies and suppliers, by giving

consumers effective choices over the selection of those supplies
and suppliers and by encouraging the development of distributed

and small generation facilities;

{2} Resources, including zero-emissions nuclear resoUurces

a5 defined in section 4928.75 of the Revised Code, that provide

fuel diversity and envirconmental and other benefits.

(D) Bncourage innovation and market access for cost-
effective supply- and demand-side retail electric service
including, but not limited to, demand-side management, CTime-—
differentiated pricing, waste energy recovery systems, smart
grid programs, and implementation of advanced metering

infrastructure;

(E) Encourage cost-effective and efficient access to
information regarding the coperaticn of the transmission and
distribution systems of electric utilities in order to promote
both effective customer choice of retail electric service and
the development of performance standards and targets for service
gquality for all consumers, including annual achievement reports

written in plain language;

(F}) Ensure that an electric utility's transmission and

Page 2

18
20
21

22
23
24
25

26

27
28
29
30

31
32
33

34
35
36
37
38
39

40
41
42
43
44
45
46

47



. B. No.
1_132_07231

distribution systems are available to a customer-generator or
owner of distributed generation, so that the customer-generator

or owner can market and deliver the electricity it produces;

{G) Recognize the continuing emergence of competitive
electricity markets through the development and implementaticn

of flexible regulatory treatment, while simultanecusly

recognizing the need for nuclear energy resocurces, as defined in

secticon 4828.75 of the Revised Code, and resources that provide

fuel diversity and environmental and other benefitfs;

{H} Ensure effective competition in the provisicn of
retall electric service by avoiding anticompetitive subsidies
flowing from a noncompetitive retail electric service to a
competitive retail electric service or teo a product or service
other than retail electric service, and vice versa, including by
prohibiting the recovery of any generation-related costs through

distribution or transmissicn rates;

(I} BEnsure retail electric service consumers protection
against unreasonable sales practices, market deficienciles, and

market power;

(J) Provide coherent, transparent means of giving
appropriate incentives to technolecgies that can adapt

succegsfully to potential envirommental mandates;

{K} Encourage implementation of distributed generation
across customer classes through regular review and updating of
administrative rules governing critical issues such as, but not
limited to, interconnection standards, standby charges, and net

metering;

(LY Protect at-risk populatiens, including, but not

limited to, when considering the implementaticn cof any new
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.B. No.
i 132_07231

advanced energy oOr renewable energy resource;

(M} E®acourage the education of small business owners in
this state regarding the use of, and encourage the use of,
energy efficiency programs and alternative energy rescurces in

their businesses;

{N} Facilitate the state's effectiveness in the global

2CONnOmy .

In carrying out this policy, the commission shall consider
rules as they apply to the costs of electric distribution
infrastructure, including, but net limited to, line extensions,

for the purpose of development in this state.

Sec. 4928.75. As used 1in secitions 4928.75 tc 4928.7532 of

the Revised Code:

(A) "Nuclear energy resource" means an electric generaticon

unit fueled, in whole or in part, by nuclear power and licensed

by the nuclear regulatory commission.

{B) "PJM" means the PJM Interconnection, L.L.C., or its

‘successor.

(C) "Zerc-emissions nuclear credit" means the attributes

associated with one megawatt hour of electricity generated by a

zero—emissions nuclear resource.

(D) "Zero—emissions nuclear rescource" means a nuclear

energy resource that meets the criteria of section 49%28.754 of

the Revised Code.

Sec. 4928.75]1. Thers is hereby created a zerc-emissions

nuclear resource program tc enable the state to meet its policy

goals and requirements under which zerc-emissions nuclear

credits are purchased by electric distribution utilities to
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. B. No. Page 5
{132 0723-1

provide long-term energy security and environmental and other

benefits to the region and to retail electric service customers

in the state. An electric distribution utility in this state

that has a zero-emissions nuclear resource located within its

certified territory shall participate in the program. All

electric distribution utilities in the same helding company

system shall participate jointly and shall allocate costs across

all classes of each participating utility's customers.

Sec. 4928.752. The zero-emissions nuclear resource program

shall operate for successive two-year program periods beginning

with the initial program period commencing on the effective date

of this section.

Sec. 4928.753. To provide zero-emissions nuclear credits

under the zero-emissions nuclear program, an entity that owns or

operates a nuclear energy resource shall file with the public.

utilities commission a written notice verifying that the

rescurce meets the criteria under section 4928.754 of the

Revised Code. The entity shall file the written notice not laterx

than ninety days after the commencement of the initial program

pericd or, if the rescurce has not yet qualified, not later than

prior to the commencement of a subsequent program period.

Sec. 4928.754. A nuclear energy resource that satisfies

all of the following criteria 1s a zero-emissionsg nuclear

regsource for purposes of zero-emisgsions nuclear credits:

(A) The resource 1s interconnected within the transmission

system of PJM.

{(B) PJM has determined the resource is transmissicn

deliverable under the metrics by which PJM calculates

deliverability for purposes of capacity planning on a round-the-
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. B. No.
1132 07231

clock baseload basis into the transmission zone or zones of

electric distribution utilities participating in the zero-

emissions nuclear resource program under sections 4928.75 to

4928.7532 of the Revised Code.

(C) (1) For in-state nuclear energy resources:

{a) The resource has benefited the air quality prcfile of

the state more than the predomihant electric generation source

with similar capacity and baselcad characteristics as the

resocurce as of the time the rescurce commenced cperation.

{(b) All of the follewing could cccur if the resource

ceased operation and its capacity were replaced at the same

location by the then predeominant electric generation source with

similar capacity and baseload characteristics as the resource:

(1) The ability of the state, or region of the state, to

maintain or decrease existing intensity-levels of fine—

IO ISR e o
FEI-ERTTE ¥

safter-volatile organic compounds or to comply

pu

with one or more state or federal air pollution control

programs, standards, or goals is reduced.

(i1) The carbon dioxide emissions intensity of the state

is negatively impacted.

{ii1i) The ability of the state to maintain or decrease

existing dmkensitty—levels of carbon monoxide, lead, ground-level

ozone, particulate matter, nitrogen oxide, or sulfur dioxide is

negatively impacted.

(2) For all other nuclear energy resources, each such

regource is shown to provide no less than the same level of

environmental benefits tce the state as nuclear energy resources

located within the state, pursuant to the requirements in

division (C)} (1) of this section.
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(D} The resocource, on or after January 1, 2017:

{1) Did not receive from another state tax exemptions,

deferrals, exclusions, allowances, payments, credits,

deductions, or reimbursements calculated in whole or in part

~using a metric that provides wvalue for emissions not produced by

“he resource;

{2) Is nct wholly owned by a municipal or cooperative

corporation or a group, association, or consortium of those

corporations; or

{3} Did not, during a program period described in secticn

4928.752 of the Revised Code, recover some or all of the capital

or operating costs of the rescurce through rates requlated by a

state.

Sec. 4928.755. With respect to a writien notice filed

under section 4928.753 of the Revised Code relatiang to a nuclear

energy resource located in this state, any interested perscn may

file comments with the public utilities commission not later

than twenty days after the written notice was filed.

Sec. 4928.756. An entity that owns cr operates a nuclear

energy resource may file with the public utilities commission a

response to any comment made under secticn 4928.755 of the

Revised Code, not later than ten days after the comment was

filed.

Sec. 4928.757. Net later than fifty days after the filing

of a written notice under secticon 4%28.753 of the Revised Code

relating to a nuclear energy resource located in this state, the

public utilities commission shall designate a resource that

satisfies the criteria in section 4928.754 of the Revised Code

as a zero-emissions nuclear rescource and issue an order
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consgistent with that designaticon. If the commission does not

issue an order in the time required by this section, the

resource shall be deemed to be a zero-emissions nuclear

TesSource.

Sec. 4928.7510. With respect to a written notice filed

under section 4928,753 of the Revised Code relating to a nuclear

energy resource described in division (C)(2) of ssction 4928.754

cf the Revised Code, the resource shall submit with its written

notice an environmental study showing that the resource meets

the criteria under section 4928.754 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 4928.7511. The public utilities commission, under a

procedure it adopts, shall determine and issue the appropriate

order regarding whether a nuclear energy resource described in

diwvision (C)(2) of section 4928.754 of the Revised Code

satigfies the criteria in section 4928.754 of the Revised Code

as a zero—-emissions nuclear resource. At minimum, the adopted

procedure shall provide the copportunity for comment and response

similar to the oppertunities described under sections 4928.755

and 4928.756 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 4928.7513. A nuclear energy resource determined under

section 4928.757 or 4928.7511 of the Revised Code to be a zero-

emissions nuclear resource shall continue to be considered such

a resource for all successive program periods as long as the

resource continues to meet the criteria of divisions (A), (B),

and (D) of section 4928.754 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 4928.7514. Zerc-emission nuclear resources shall

provide zero-emissions nuclear credits for the zerco-emissions

nuclear resource program. Not later than thirty days before a

program period commences, each zero-emissicns nuclear rescurce

shall confirm with the public utilities commission its intent to
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continue to commit its credits under the program.

Sec. 4928.7515. All financial statements, financial data,

and trade secrets submitted to or received by the public

utilities commission for purposes of satisfying the criteria as

a zero—emissions nuclear resocource and any information taken for

any purpose from the statements, data, or trade secrets are not

public records under secticn 148%.43 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 4928.7520. Not later than sixty days after the

initial program period commences and not later than thirty days

before a subsequent program period commences, the public

atilities commission shall set the price for zero—emissions

nuclear credits applicable for the period. For the initial

program period the price shall be seventeen dollars per credit.

For each subseguent program period, that price shall be adjusted

for inflation using the gross domestic product implicit price

deflator as published by the United States department of

commerce, bureau of economic analysis, index numbers 2007=100.

Sec. 492B.7521. At the same time the public utilities

commission sets the price for zero-emissions nuclear credits,

the commissicn shall determine the maximum number of credits to

be purchased by electric distribution utilities during the

program period. The amount the commission sets shall equal one-

third cof the total "Tota. End User Consumption"” in megawatt-

hours cover the previcus two calendar years as shown on PUCO Form

D1 of each participating electric distribution utility's most

recently filed long-term forecast report.

Sec. 4928.7522. Not later than seven days fcllowing the

close of each guarter of a program period, each zero-emissions

nuclear resource shall transfer all of its zeroc-emissions

nuclear credits generated that quarter to the public utilities
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commission, which shall hold the credits for the sole purpose of

administering the program.

Sec. 4928.7523. Not later than seven days after the zero-

emissions nuclear resource transfers its credits, the public

atilities commission shall notify each participating electric

distribution utility of the total amount of zerc-emissions

nuclear credits received from zerco-emissions nuclear resources.

Sec. 4928.7524. Rll participating electric distribution

utilities shall purchase all zero-emissions nuclear credits

transferred to the public utilities commission up to the maximum

number of credits determined under section 4528.7521 of the

Revised Code. The commission shall allocate the amcunts to be

purchased by each participating utility based on the total

"Total End User Consumption” in megawatt-hours over the previous

two calendar years as shown on PUCO Form D1 of each

participating electric distributicen utility's most recently

filed long-term forecast report. Bach participating electric

distribution utility shall pay the credit price for each credit

purchased.

Sec. 4928.7525. The public utilities ccmmission shall

deposit all payments for credits into the zerc-emissions nuclear

resources fund created under section 4928.7532 of the Revised

Code,

Sec. 4928.7526. Not later than seven days after receipt of

utility payment, the public utilities commission shall pay to

each zero—emissions nuclear rescurce the amount paid for each of

the resource's zerc—emissions nuclear credits purchased from the

zero-emissions nuclear rescurces fund.

Sec. 4928.7527, Credits purchased by participating
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electric distribution utilities may not be transferred, sold, or

assigned to any other entity.

Sec. 4828.7530. Fach participating electric distribution

utility shall recover any and z2ll direct and indirect costs for

the purchase of zerc-emissions nuclear credits through a

nonbypassable rider charged to all of its retall electric

service customers, which rider shall be established not later

than sixty days after the effective date of this section.

Sec. 4928.7532. There is hereby created the zerc-emissions

nuclear resources fund that shall be in the custody of the

treasurer of state but shall not be part of the state treasury.

The fund shall consist of all money collected by the public

utilities commission from purchases of zerco-emissions nuclear

credits. The amounts deposited into the fund shall be used to

pray the credit purchase price to the rescurces that generated

the credits. All investment earnings from the fund shall be

transferred by the treasurer to the general revenue fund in the

state Treasury.

Section 2. That existing section 45928.02 of the Revised

Code 1is hereby repealed.

280
281

282
283
284
285
286
287

288
289
290
291
292
203
294
285
286
287

298
299



Rep30

From: Rep30

Sent: Tuesday, March 21, 2017 11:21 AM
To: Kasych, Shawn

Subject: ZEN

Attachments: | 132_0723-2.pdf

Please find attached the latest version of the ZEN hill.



Reviewed As To Form By
Legislative Service Commission

|_132_0723-2

132nd General Assembly

Regular Session ~ .B.No.

2017-2018

A BILL

To amend section 4928.02 and fto enact secticns
4928.75, 4928.751, 4928.752, 4928.753, 4928.7054,
4928.755, 4928.756, 49%28.757, 4%28.7511,
4828.7513, 4928.7514, 4828.7515, 4%28.7520,

4528 .7521, 4928.7522, 4928.7523, 4928.7524,
4928.7525, 4%28.7526, 4928.7527, 4928.7530,
4928.7532, 4928.7533, 4928.7534, and 4828.7540
of the Revised Code regarding the zero-emissicns

nuclear resource pProgram.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF OHIO:

Section 1. That section 4828.02 be amended and sections
4928.75, 4928.751, 4528.752, 4928.753, 4928.754, 4928.755,
4928.756, 4928.757, 4928.7511, 4828.7513, 4828.7514, 4828.7515,
4528.7520, 4928.7521, 4928.7522, 49%28.7523, 4928.7524,
4928.7525, 4928.7526, 4928.7527, 4%28.7530, 4928.7532,
4928.7533, 4828.7534, and 4928.7540 of the Revised Code be

anacted to read as follcws:

Sec. 4928.02. Tt is the policy of this state to do the
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feilowing throughout this state:

(R) Ensure the availability tc consumers of adequate,
reliable, safe, efficient, nondiscriminatory, and reasonably

priced retail electric service;

(B) Ensure the availability of unbundled and comparable
retaill electric service that provides consumers with the
supplier, price, terms, conditicns, and gquality opticns they

elect to meet thelr respective needs;

(C} Ensure diversity of eleetrieity—the following:

(1) Electricity supplies and suppliers, by giving

consumers effective choices over the selection of those supplies
and suppliers and by encouraging the development of distributed

and small generation facilities;

{Z) Rescurces, including zZerc—emissions nucleary resources

as defined In section 4928.75 of the Revised Code, that provide

fuel diversitv and envircnmental and other benefits,

{D} Encourage innovation and market access for cost-
effective supply- and demand-side retail electric service
including, but not limited to, demand-side management, time-
differentiated pricing, waste energy recovery systems, smart
grid programs, and implementation of advanced metering

infrastructure;

(E) Encourage cost-effective and efficlient access to
information regarding the operation of the transmission and
distribution systems of electric utilities in order to promote
both effective customer choice of retail electric service and
the development of perfcrmance standards and targets for service
quality for all consumers, including annual achievement reports

written in plain language;
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(F} Ensure that an electric utility's transmission and
distribution systems are avallable to a customer—-generator or
owner of distributed generation, so that the customer~generator

or owner can market and deliver the electricity it produces;

(G} Recognize the continuing emergence of competitive
electricity markets through the development and implementation

of flexible regulatory treatment, while simultanecously

recognizing the need for nuclear enerqgy resources, as defined in

section 4928.75 of the Revised Code, and resources that provide

fuel diversity ;nd environmental and other benefits;

{H) Ensure effective competition in the provision of
retail electric service by avoiding anticompetitive subsidies
flowing from a noncompetitive retail electric service to a

competitive retail electric service or to a product or service

other than retail electric service, and vice versa, including by -

prohibiting the recovery of any generation-related costs through

distribution or transmissicn rates;

(I) Ensure retail electric service consumers protection
agalnst unreasonable sales practices, market deficiencies, and

market power;

{J) Provide coherent, Lransparent means of giving
appropriate ilncentives tc technologies that can adapt

successfully to potential envircnmental mandates;

(K) Encourage implementation of distributed generatiocn
across customer classes through regular review and updating of
administrative rules governing critical issues such as, but not
limited to, interconnection standards, standby charges, and net

metering;

(L) Protect at-risk populations, including, but not
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limited to, when considering the implementation of any new

advanced energy or renewable energy resource;

(M) Encourage the education of small business owners in
this state regarding the use of, and encourage the use of,
energy efficiency programs and alternative energy resources in

their businesgses;

(N). Facilitate the state's effectiveness in the glohal

econaomy.

In carrying out this pelicy, the commission shall consider
rules as they apply to the costs of electric distribution
infrastructure, including, but not limited to, line extensions,

for the purpose of development in this state.

Sec. 4928.75. BAs used in sections 4928.75 to 4828.7540 of

the Revised Code:

{(A) "Nuclear energy resource" means an electric generation

unit fueled, in whole or in part, bv nuclear power and licensed

by _the nuclear regulaltorv commissilon.

(B) "PJM" means the PJM Interconnection, L.L.C., or its

SUCCessor.,

(C) "Zero-emissions nuclear credit" means the attributes

associated with one megawatt hour of electricity generated by a

zero—emissions nuclear resource.

(D) "Zerco—emissiocns nuclear resource” means a nuclear

energy resource that meets the criteria of section 4928.754 of

the Revised Code.

Sec. 4828.751., There is herebv created a zero—emissions

nuclear resource program to enable the state to meet its pelicy

goals and reguirements under which zero-emissions nuclear
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credits are purchased by clectric distribution utilities to

provide long-—-term energy sccurity and environmental and other

benefits to the region and to retail electric service customers

in the state. An electric distribution utility in this state

that has & zero-emissions nuclear resource located within its

certified territorv shall participate in the program. All

electric distribution utilities in the same holding company

system shall participate jointly and shall allocate costs across

all classes of sach participating utility's customers.

Sec. 4928.752. The zero-emissions nuclear resource prodgram

shall operate for_ successive two-vear program periods beginning

with the initial program period commencing on the effective date

of this section and terminating on the last day of the eighth

program period.

Sec, 4928.753. To provide zero-emissions nuclear credits

under the zero-emissions nuclear program, an entity that owns or

cperates a nuclear energy resource shall file with the public

utilities commission a written notice verifving that the

resource meets the criteria under section 4928.754 of the

Reviged Code. The entity shall file the wriftften notice not later

than ninety dayvs after the commencement of the initial program

period.

Sec. 4828.754. A nuclear energy. resource that satisfies

all of the following criteria is a zero-emissions nuclear

resource for purposes of zero-omissions nuclear credits:

(A} The resource is interconnected within the transmission

system of PJIM,

(RY PJM has determined the resource is transmission

deliverable under the metrics bv which PJM calculates
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deliverability for purposes of capacity planning con a round-the-—

clock baselogad basis into the transmissicon zone cor zones of

electric distribution utilities participating in the zero-

emigsions nuclear resource program under sections 4828.75 to

4928.7540 of the Revised Code.

(Cy (1) For in-state nuclear energy resources:

{a) The respource has benefited the air guality profile of

the state more than the predominant electric generation source

with similar capacity and baseclioad characteristics as the

resource as of the time the resource commenced operation.

(by 211 of the fellowing could occur if the resource

ceased operation and its capacity were replaced at the same

location by the then predominant electric generation scurce with

similar capacity and baseload characteristics as the resource:

(i) The ability of the state, or region of the state, to

maintain or decrease existing intensity of fine particulate

matter or to comply with one or more state or federal air

pellution control prograns, standards, or goals is reduced.

(ii] The carbon dioxide emissions intensity of the state

i1s negativelv impacted.

(iii) The ability of the state to maintain or decrease

existing intensity of carbon monoxide, lead, grocund-level ozone,

particulate matter, nitrogen oxide, or sulfur dicxide is

negatively impacted.

(2) For all other nuclear energy regscurces, each such

resource is shown to provide no less than the same level of

environmental benefits to the state as nuclear energy resources

located within the state, pursuant to the reguirements in

division (C) (1) of this section.
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(D} The resource, on or after January 1, 2017:

{1} Did not receive from ancther state tax exemptions,

deferrals, exclusions, allowances, pavments, credits,

deductions, or reimbursements calculated in whole or in part

using a metric that provides value for emissions not produced by

the resource;

(2) Is not wheolly owned by a municipal or cooperative

corporation or a group, association, or consortium of those

corporations; or

(3) Did not, during a program pericd described in section

4928.752 of the Revised Code, recover scome or all of the capital

or operating costs of the rescource through rates requlated by a

state.

Sec. 4928.755. With respect to a written notice filed

under section 4928.753 of the Reviged Code relating te a nuclear

energy resource located in this state, anv interested person may

file comments with the public utilities commission nct later

than twenty davs after the written notice was filed.

Sec. 4928.756. An entity that owns or operates & nuclear

energy resource may file with the public utilities commissicon a

response to any comment made under zection 4928.755 of the

Revised Code, nct later than ten davs afte; the comment was

filed.

Sec. 4928.757. Not later than fiftv davs after the filing

of a written notice under section 4928.753 of the Revised Code

relating to a nuclear energy resource located in this state, the

public utilities commission shall designate a resource that

satisfies the criteria in section 4928.754 of the Revised Code

as a zero—emissions nuclear resource and issue an order
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consistent with that designation. If the commission does not 182
issue an order in the time required by this secticn, the ) 193
resource shall be deemed to be 2 zero-emissions nuclear 194
resource. 195

Sec. 4928.7511. The public utilities commiss’on, under a 196
procedure it adopts, shall determine and issue the appropriate 197
order regarding whether a nuglear energy resource described in 158
division {C}(2) of section 43528.754 of the Revised Code 199
satisfies the criteria in section 4928.754 of the Revised Code 200
as a zero—emissions nuclear resource. The nuclear snerqgy 201
rescurce shall submit an environmental study showing that the . 202
resource meets the criteria undery section 4928.754 of the 203
Revised Code. At minimum, the adopted procedure shall previde 204
the opportunity for comment and responge similar to the 205
opportunities described under sections 4928.755 and 4928.756 of 2086
the Revised Code. B 207

Sec. 4828.7513. A nuclear energy regource determined under 208
section 4928.757 or 4928.7511 of the Revised Code to be a zero- 209
emissions nuclear resgource shall continue to be considered such 210
a resource for all successive program perigds as long as the 211
resource continues to meet the criteria of divisions (A}, (B}, 212
and (D) of section 4928.754 of the Revised Code. The provisions 213
of secticons 4928.75 t¢ 4928.7540 of the Revised Code shall apply 214
Lec any person to which zero-emissions nuclear rescurces are 215
scold, assigned, transferred, or conveved. 216

Sec., 4928.7514. ‘Zero—emission nuclear resources shall 217
provide zero-emissions nuiclear credits for the zero—emissions 218
nuclear rescource program. Not later than thirty davs before = 218
program period commences, each zero-emissions nuclear resgurce 220

shall confirm with the public utilities commission its intent to 221
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continue to commit its credits under the program.

Sec. 4928.7515. All financial statements, financial data,

and trade secrets submitted to cr received by the public

ubilities commission for purpcoses of satisfying the ¢riteria as

a zero—emissions nuclear resource and any information taken for

any purpose from the statements, data, or trade secgrets are not

public records under section 149.43 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 4528.7520. Not later than sixtv davs after the

initial program period commences and not later than thirty davs

before a subsequent program pericd commences, the public

utilities commission shall set the price for zero-emissions

nuclear credits applicable for the period. For the initial

program period the price shall be seventeen dollars per credit.

For each subsequent program period, that price shall be adiusted

for inflation using Lhe gross domestic product implicit price

deflator as published by the United States department of

commerce, bureau of economic analvsis, index numbers 2007=100.

Sec. 4928 7521. At the same time fthe public utilities

commissicn sets the price for zero—~emlissions nuclear credits,

Lthe commission shall determine the maximum number of credits to

be purchased by electric distribution utilities during the

program period. The amount the commission sets shall egual one-—

third of the total "Total Fnd User Consumption” in megawati-

hours over the previcus two calendar vears as shown on PUCC Form

D1 of each participating electric distribution utllitv's most

recently filed long-term forecast report.

Sec. 4928.7522. Not later than seven davys following the

close of each guarter of a program period, each zero—emigsions

nuclear resource shall transfer all of its zerp-emissicns

nuclear credits generated that guarter to the public utilities
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commission, which shall hold the credits for the sole purpose of

administering the program.

Sec. 4828.7523. Not later than seven davys atfter the zerg-—

emissions nuclear reosource transfers its credits, the public

utilities commission shall notifyv each participating electric

distribution utilitv of the total amount of zero-emissionsg

nuclear credits received from zero-emissions nuclear resources.

Sec. 48928.7524. (A} Except as provided in diwvision (B) of

this section, all participating electric distribution utilities

shall purchase all zero-emissions nuclear credits transferred tg

" the public utilities commission up to the maximum number cof

gredits determined under section 4928.7521 of the Revised Code.

The commission shall allocate the amounts to be purchased by

each participating utility based on the total "Teotal End User

“Consumption” in megawatt-hours over the previous two calendar

vears as shown on PUCO Form D1 of each participating electric

distribution utilitv's most recently filed long-term forecast

report. Bach participating electric distribution utility shall

pav _the credit price for each credit purchased.

(B) If the owner, as of December 31, 2016, o a zero—

emigsions nuclear resource sells or transfers the zero-emissions

nuclear resource, the gommission shall reduce the number of

zero—emissions nuclear credits to be purchased from that

resource during the prodgram period and, if necessarv, successive

program pericds, to reflect an adjustment equal to one-half of

the dollar amount of anv net proceeds available after the

pavment or provision for the seller's known obligations, but in

no _instance shall this adljustment apply to a sale or transfer

under the United States Bankruptcy Code, including, but not

limited to, sections 363 and 1123, 11 U.S8.C. sections 363 and
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1123.

Sec. 4928.7525. The public utilities commission shall

deposit all pavments for credits into the zero—-emissions nuclear

rescurceg fund created under section 4928.7532 of the Reviscd

Code.

Sec. 4928.7526. Not later than seven davs after receipt of

utility payment, the public utilities commission shall payv to

cach zero—-emlissions nuclear resource the amount paid for each of

the resource's zero—emissions nuclear credits purchased from the

zero—emissions nuclear resources fund.

Sec. 4928.7527. Credits purchased by participating

electric distribution utilities mayv not be transferred, sold, or

assigned to any other entitv.

Sec., A828.7530. FEach participating electric distribution

utilityv shall recover any and all direct and indirect costs for

the purchase of zerco-emissions nuclear credits through a

nonbvpagsable rider charged to all of 1ts retall electric

gservice customers, which rider shall be established not later

than sixtv days after the effective date of this section. The

nonbvpassable charge shall be designed such that no retail

electric service customey shall have an increase resulting from

the nonbypassable rider in the customer's total retail electric

service bill of more than five per cent as compared Lo June

2015, The participating electric distribution utility shall

defer as a requlatorv asset an amount egual to the revenue

reduction resulting from the five per cent limit on customer

bill increases and recover the deferral plus carrying charges

through a2 nonbvpassable charge assessed over a twelve-month

periocd.
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SBec. 4928.7532. There is herebyv created the zero—-emissions

nuclear resources fund that shall be in the custodv of the

treasurer of state but shall not be part of the state treasurv.

The fund shall consist of all monev collected by the public

utilities commission from purchases of zerc—emissions nuclear

credits. The amounts depssited into the fund shall be used to

pay the credit purchase orice to the rescurces that generated

the credits. Al]l investmasnt earnings from the fund shall ke

transferred by the treasurer to the general revenue fund in the

state treasury.

Sec. 4928.7533. During each program pericd in which a

zero-emissions nuclear rsscource receives pavment for credits

under section 4928.7526 of the Revised Code, an entitv that owns

or operates that zero-emissions nucglear resource and that has

its corporate headguarters located in this state shall gontinue

to maintain its corporats headguarters in this state.

Sec. 4928.7534. During the sixth and eleventh vears of the

zero—emissions nuclear rosource program, the public utilities

commission shall evaluate the zerc—-emissions nuclear credit

price estahlished under secticn 4928.7520 of the RBevised Code

for the purpose of discerning whether the program is achieving

the policy goals in section 4%28.751 of the Revised Code and

whether those policy goals are being met throuah other federal

environmental laws, programs, rules or regulations, or through

amendments Lo the federal tax code. Upon the conclusion of its

evaluation, the commission shall report the results of its

evaluation to the standing committees of both houses of the

general assembly that have primary jurisdiction regarding public

utility legisglation. In no case shall the zero-emissions nuclear

resource program terminate earlier than the last day of the

second program period.
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. B. No.
|_132_0723-2

Sec. 4928.7540. (A} For purposes of this section:

{1) "Emplovment levels" means the numbéer of full-time

employees reqularly providing services at the location of a

Zero~emissions nuclear rosource.

{2) "Full-time emplovee" means an individual who 1s

employed for Considerétion for at least thirty-five hours per

week, or who renders anv other standard of service generally

acceptedAbv custom or specified by contract as full-time

cmployment .

{B) During each program period in which a zero—emissions

nuclear resource receives pavment for zero-emissions nuclear

credits under section 4928.7526 of the Revised Code, the

employvment levels at that zero—-emissions nuclear resource shall

continue to be similar to that of nuclear energy resources

constructed prior to 1990 in the United States with the same

reactor tvpe, similar nameplate capacity, and single-unit

location.

Section 2. That existing section 4928.02 of the Revised

Code i1s hereby repealed.
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE THE
FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

State Policies and Wholesale Markets
Operated by ISO New England Inc., New
York Independent System Operator, Inc.,
and PJM Interconnection, L.L.C.

Docket No. AD17-11-000

L i N N

COMMENTS OF THE INDEPENDENT MARKET MONITOR FOR PJM

Pursuant to the notice issued in this proceeding May 23, 2017, inviting post-technical
conference comments, Monitoring Analytics, LLC, acting in its capacity as the Independent
Market Monitor (“Market Monitor”) for PIM Interconnection, L.L.C. (“PJM"), submits these

comments.

I. INTRODUCTION

The Market Monitor believes that there is a constructive way forward to recognize
and accommodate state public policy issues in competitive wholesale power markets. But
rather than directly accommodate specific approaches that attempt to reverse market
outcomes and undercut markets, it would be more productive to take a forward looking
collaborative approach to systematically and consistently address, using market principles,
the concerns of state and federal regulators, ISO/RTOs and market participants. The
combined wisdom and abilities of all these stakeholders can address these concerns in a
forward looking way that recognizes the benefits of markets for all market participants. It is
urgent that the identified issues be addressed. But it is not so urgent as to prevent a
rational, forward looking and collaborative approach to addressing the issues that are faced

by all.



II. COMMENTS

PJM markets are working. The price of energy in 2016 was the lowest since the
beginning of PJM competitive markets on April 1, 1999.! Fuel diversity has increased.? Gas
is very cheap and energy from highly efficient gas-fired combined cycle generating plants is
correspondingly cheap and generally less expensive than energy from coal-fired plants.?

Wholesale power markets are successful and sustainable when the revenues from
the combination of markets provide the incentives necessary for entry and exit consistent
with ongoing reliability. PJM markets meet this test.

The P]M design relies on a combination of energy and capacity markets that has
worked well to provide incentives to provide energy and capacity at the lowest possible
cost. There is no reason to change the fundamental PJM market design. Suggestions that a
bilateral substitute for the PJM Capacity Market would provide more choices for customers
and be more effective at ensuring reliability are misguided. The PIM capacity market is a
must buy and must sell construct by design. If load did not have to purchase capacity and
generators did not have to sell capacity, the market could not function to ensure a market
price signal for the defined level of reliability. Bilateral markets expose all participants to
market power exercised by those with superior market information. Competitive markets
are transparent while bilateral markets are opaque. Load is especially exposed to the
exercise of market power by generators, especially given that market power is endemic in
the PJM Capacity Market given the ownership structure. But sophisticated loads could also

exercise market power against generators. The PIM Capacity Market provides competitive,

i See the 2016 State of the Market Report for PIM, Vol. 2, Section 3: Energy Market
2 Id. at Section 3: Energy Market pp 106 — 107 and Section 3: Capacity pp 223 — 224,

3 Id. at Section 7: Net Revenue, Figure 7-5.



transparent outcomes that berefit both generation and load and are demonstrably superior
to a bilateral approach.

One of the factual questions underlying the subsidies discussion is whether some
units are uneconomic. If a plant does not cover its going forward costs and expects to
continue to not cover its going forward costs, the market is sending a retirement signal; the
owner of the plant is better off if the unit retires than if it remains in service. Gas-fired
combined cycle plants have covered going forward costs in PJM markets. Most nuclear
plants also cover going forward costs in PJM markets. In 2016, approximately three quarters
of nuclear plants covered 100 percent or more of going forward costs. The net revenues of
nuclear plants are very sensitive to energy prices. If energy prices in all of 2016 had been
equal to energy prices in the first quarter of 2017, all but one nuclear plant would have
covered its going forward costs. In 2016, less than half of all coal plants covered more than
90 percent of going forward costs. ¢ |

Some owners of nuclear power plants define economic as achieving a target rate of
return on assets. These owners confuse markets with cost of service ratemaking. There are
no guaranteed rates of return in markets. Even if the goal were to subsidize plants to ensure
they remained in service, the effective subsidy level would cover going forward costs and
no more. It is not clear how the level of proposed subsidies for specific plants in PJM was
reached.

It continues to be profitable to invest in new combined cycle plants in PJM,
especially in the eastern zones. A new combined cycle unit in the eastern zones of PJM
would have covered 100 percent of its levelized annual cost in 2016, including a returm on

and of capital® A new combined cycle that entered the PJM market in 2012 in an eastern

4 See the 2017 Quarterly State of the Market Report for PJM: January through March, Section 7: Net
Revenme

5 See the 2016 Staie of the Markel Repori for PJM, Vol. 2, Section 7: Net Revenue, Figure 7-7.



zone would have covered more than 100 percent of its levelized annual cost through 2016.¢
It is not profitable and has not been profitable to invest in either new coal or nuclear power
plants in PJM, and it is not likely to become profitable.7 More than 20,000 MW of
- uneconomic coal-fired generation has retired and been replaced by a combination of gas-
fired units, renewable resources and demand side resources. PJM has retained a robust
reserve margin based on market signals.

What is the problem that subsidies are intended to solve? The problem appears to be
that competitive markets are working as intended. Low gas prices result in Jow power
prices which result in low net revenues for coal and nuclear power plants. The result is that
the profits of some units are lower as a result of these competitive pressures. The impact of
competition on coal units has been much greater than the impact of competition on nuclear
units. Nuclear units have not been made generally uneconomic as a result of competition.

The owners of units under competitive pressure propose a short term solution for
their issues. The owners of nuclear plants have attempted to make a more general case for
subsidies than the owners of coal plants.

The owners of some nuclear and coal units have proposed to require customers to
subsidize these units. The owners of these units have, in some cases, sought to require
customers to pay subsidies to offset the impact of competition on specific units. The owners
of some coal plants demonstrated that the units were uneconomic in litigated cases. The
owners of nuclear plants requesting subsidies have not convincingly demonstrated that
they are uneconomic. The subsidies solution appears to be gaining ground among some
owners of units in PJM and elsewhere. Subsidies for nuclear plants seem fo have more

traction than subsidies for coal plants.

s Id p.295.

7 Id. at Figure 7-8 and Figure 7-9.



The longer term solution, consistent with and a logical extension of the short term
subsidies solution, is to reregulate power generation. That is the logical outcome if the
starting place is the assertion that market outcomes are not acceptable, that unit owners and
state regulators know the right mix of generation and that unit-owners and state regulators
are prepared to override market outcomes to implement their approach. Once these steps
are taken, it is difficult to argue that it is reasonable to have subsidies for only one
technology and in only one state. The logic of subsidies leads to subsidies for all units and
ultimately to reregulation. This is not hyperbole. It is a foreseeable outcome of the subsidies
solution.

Competition in wholesale power markets, initially in the limited form of PURPA in
1978, was a response to cost overruns at nuclear power plants which were a preferred
technology of utility managements and state regulators at the time. The irony would be to
end competition in wholesale power markets because the same nuclear power plants are
not cost effective in competitive markets and because the owners of those plants
successfully seek subsidies to override market outcomes.

There is another option, both short term and longer term. The alternative to
subsidies and reregulation is to let markets work. There is no defined market design
problem that requires subsidies.

Most nuclear plants did not receive a retirement signal from PJM markets in 2016,
even with the lowest energy prices in the history of PJM. Some units were uneconomic in
2016, for example, as a result of their location on the system but that outcome was a result
of uniquely low 2016 energy prices. If uneconomic units continue o produce low cost
energy as a result of subsidies, that will reduce energy prices and therefore make other
units less profitable and more likely to be uneconomic in the future. The result is that if
uneconomic units are subsidized that will lead to additional requests for subsidies.

The arguments for subsidies include the assertion that nuclear power plants are a
cost effective way to reduce carbon output. If society agrees that carbon is a polutant, it has

not been demonstrated that subsidizing nuclear power plants is the most cost effective way

-5-



to reduce carbon emissions; that conclusion is highly unlikely to be Cérrect It is widely
agreed by economists that a carbon price would be a preferable, market-based solution that
provides incentives to the most cost effective approaches to carbon reduction. It is not clear
why the market-based solution of a carbon price is rejected as impractical while subsidies
that undermine markets are deemed a practical solution.

Even in the absence of a carbon price, an auction for the most cost effective sources
of carboﬁ reduction would be preferable to the unexamined assumption that subsidies are a
cost effective way to reduce carbon.

The arguments for subsidies include the assertion that coal and nuclear power plants
are needed for fuel diversity. If the underlying fuel diversity issue is actually the reliability
of supply rather than simply having multiple fuels, it is rational to take steps to ensure that
the power supply is reliable. It has not been demonstrated, or even explicitly asserted, that
subsidies to uneconomic units are a cost effective way to ensure reliability through fuel
diversity.

It should go without saying that, in a competitive market, subsidies to economic
units are inappropriate for any reason, carbon related, diversity related or any other reason.

If the grid were built from scratch today, the generation mix would likely consist of
gas fired combined cycle units with oil or other backup, gas fired combustion turbine units
with oil or other back up, wind units, solar units and hydro units. The risks of reliance on
gas need to be addressed directly and systematically using many of the same techniques
used by leiectric transmission planners.® The incentives of gas pipelines and merchant
power generators need to be examined carefully and harmonized to help ensure that
merchant power plants can purchase firm no notice gas service. The planning process for

gas pipeline construction and operation should recognize the efficiencies that have resulted

8 PIM Interconnection, L.L.C., “PIM’s Evolving Resource Mix and System Reliability,” Grid 20/20,
Philadelphia, PA (March 30, 2017).



from ISO/RTOs in power markets. These steps would be a sensible strategy even without
increased reliance on gas-fired generation. The incremental costs are likely to be low.

It would make seﬁse, as a matter of policy, to recognize that the markets are forward
looking and that it is shortsighted to attempt to retain uneconomic resources that were built
more than 30 years ago simply because the transition to the future is difficult and, for some
resources, wrenching. As tempting as it may be, it would not make sense to subsidize old,
uneconomic resources rather than to plan for the future in which the generation mix will
look very different. Each decision has consequences for the future path of market
development. Every subsidy has an opportunity cost; the opportunity cost is the foregone
alternate path to reliable supply. The optimal transmission grid will look very different
under a future with gas and renewables. Investment in a fransmission grid linked to
uneconomic resources has an opportunity cost; the opportunity cost is the foregone
transmission investments required to serve load under the generation resources of the
future.

The concept of baseload resources is backward rather than forward looking.
Baseload units are units that run for most hours of the year. But the term baseload is now
frequently used to mean units that used to run a lot of hours based on old economics, that
no longer run a lot of hours based on current economics, and that are seeking subsidies to
make up the difference in revenues. Coal units are now frequently more expensive to run
than gas units on the basis of economic dispatch, operate fewer hours than in prior years
and earmn lower net revenues as a result. Nuclear units are inflexible, run all hours of the
year, have dispatch costs near zero but cannot cover going forward costs based on the net
revenues from market prices that are low as a result of low gas prices.

It would be a mistake for ISO/RTOs to have a limited MOPR of the type defined in
the Commission’s Path 1 or to continue with the status quo as defined in the Commission's
Path 3. Both paths would permit state subsidies to have a substantial impact on markets
and Path 3 would rely on litigation rather than rational market design decisions to define

the appropriate scope of any MOPR approach.
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It would be a mistake for ISO/RTOs to explicitly accommodate state level subsidies
in the market design and specifically in the capacity market design. (Commission Path 2.)
Despite the fact that some very complex and creative approaches (e.g. ISONE) have been
developed to accommodate subsidized units in capacity markets, these approaches all share
the attribute that they facilitate the forcing out of nonsubsidized economic units by
subsidized uneconomic units. That outcome is inconsistent with a market outcome and will
either be ineffective in accommodating all subsidized units or will lead to reregulation.

The accommodate approach accepts the assertion that states can take back authority
over generation on a selective basis. But that is not logically possible. The state regulation
approach is fundamentally inconsistent with the Commission’s market-based approach.
State regulation in the form of specific subsidies will suppress capacity prices and
undermine the incentive to invest of private investors and lead ultimately to reregulation.

States are at a disadvantage in negotiating with unit owners who demand subsidies
because the public utility commissions are not currently responsible for the regulation of
generaﬁon aﬁd do not have current information on actual costs and revenues. This
asymmetric bargaining power has resulted in the overstatement of economic difficulties at
specific units and a corresponding overstatement of required subsidies.

The premise appears to be that, although individual states have ceded authority
over decisions related to generation to the Commission regulated markets, individual states
can take back that authority on a piecemeal basis. It appears to be clear that states can take
back authority over generation and reimpose state cost of service regulation on generation.
But absent that decision, the status quo is continued reliance on markets and on
Commission approved market designs that use competition in place of cost of service
regulation to ensure that customers receive wholesale power at the lowest possible cost.

The current debates are in part a reflection of the absence of a single voice on
markets and how to address fundamental market design issues in the Commission
regulated markets. That voice should be the Commission. The solution is not to

accommodate the confusion associated with multiple potential decision makers but to
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attempt to resolve the confusion. The Commission is uniquely equipped and has the unique
authority to make the final call on market design decisions, including those about
internalizing the costs of environmental issues.

If the real interest is in envirommental impacts, it is clear that markets can
accommodate the environmental impacts of power generation. But power markets can
accommodate environmental impacts only if they are designed consistent with market
principles. Markets can accommodate a carbon price whether it is defined as a tax, a price
or based on cap and frade. Markets cannot accommodate approaches that ignore and are
inconsistent with market principles. Markets cannot accommodate unit specific subsidies
designed to reverse the results of competitive markets. Markets cannot accommodate
nonsynchronized approaches by multiple states to renewable power sources that provide
conflicting signals and incomplete and inefficient market outcomes. For example, it does
not make sense to have an implied price of carbon in one state of $200 per tonne and an
implied price of carbon of $50 per tonne in another state and inconsistent rules for trading
- between-states, despite the fact that all participants belong to the same wholesale power
market.

But there is a way to recognize and accommodate state public policy issues in
Competiﬁve wholesale power markets. Rather than directly accommodate approaches that
attempt to reverse market outcomes and undercut markets, it would be more productive to
take a forward looking collaborative approach to systematically and consistently address,
using market principles, the concerns of state and federal regulators, ISO/RTOs and market
participants. If carbon is a core issue, PJM could model a carbon price regime and estimate
the impacts on the dispatch of individual units, estimate the impact on carbon output, and
estimate the financial impacts on customers in individual states and provide other
information relevant to state decision makers. PJM could convene stakeholders who could
arrive at a consensus on an efficient and least cost approach to carbon pricing based on the
information about impacts, including an explicit agreement about the assignment of funds

to states, and the Commission could make a decision. The Commission could revisit its
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decision about jurisdiction over renewable power standards and convene a discussion with
the states, the ISO/RTOs and market participants to develop an efficient market wide
approach to meet specific renewable energy goals at least cost and to calculate the impacts
on customers. That solution should be fully coordinated and consistent with the approach
to carbon and could also rely on a carbon price. If fuel reliability is a core issue, approaches
to ensuring fuel reliability could be reviewed, costs and benefits of implementation could
be reviewed and a leasf cost, market-based approach to reliability could be agreed upon in
a stakeholder process organized by PJM.

The fundamental issue is not about the definition of specific problems like carbon
emissions or fuel diversity. The fundamental issue is about whether all stakeholders,
collectively, choose to continue with the development of market solutions for wholesale
power to address current and future challenges or choose to returmn to a more directly
regulated approach to wholesale power. The evidence points strongly to the benefits of
markets. The Commission has the authority to ensure that markets remain competitive and
effective. Buf the states have the authority to decide whether to withdraw from markets.

From the five potential paths forward, a combination of Path 4 and Path 5 are
consistent with continued reliance on market solutions. Path 4 would permit state policies
to be “readily integrated into the wholesale markets in a resource-neutral way.” When that
is not possible, Path 5 would be consistent with continue reliance on markets. Path 4 and
Path 5 could be designed and implemented based on the described collaborative approach.
The goal would not be to accept any and all state policy initiatives nor would it be to reject
most or all state policy initiatives. The collaborative approach would ultimately be subject
to Commission decisions.

If state policies, like unit specific subsidies for uneconomic units, cannot be readily
integrated into the wholesale markets in a resource neutral way, an expanded MOPR is
required. An expanded MOPR “would minimize the impact of state-supported resources
on wholesale market prices by expanding the existing scope of the minimum offer price

rule to apply to both new and existing capacity resources that participate in the capacity
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market and receive state support.” But the goal would be that the expanded MOPR would
be a preventative measure that served as a disincentive to engage in actions not consistent
with Path 4. If a collaborative approach based on Commission authority over wholesale
power markets can be implemented, Path 5 would be implemented only an exceptional
basis.

HI. CONCLUSION .

The Market Monitor respectfully requests that the Commission afford due

consideration to these comments as it resolves the issues raised in this proceeding.

Respectfully submitted,
W"”““”i’:} ? ?f

Joseph E. Bowring Ieffrey W. Mayes
Independent Market Monitor for PJM
President General Counsel
Monitoring Analytics, LLC, Monitoring Analytics, LLC
2621 Van Buren Avenue, Suite 160 2621 Van Buren Avenue, Suite 160
Eagleville, Pennsylvania 19403 Eagleville, Pennsylvania 19403
(610) 271-8051 (610) 271-8053
joseph.bowring@monitoringanalytics.com Jeffrey. mayes@monitoringanalytics.com

Dated: June 22, 2017
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that 1 have this day served the foregoing document upon each

person designated on the official service list compiled by the Secretary in this proceeding.

Dated at Fagleville, Pennsylvania,
this 2274 day of June, 2017.
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. ;’ o e

o

Jeffrey W. Mayes
(General Counsel
Monitoring Analytics, LLC

2671 Van Buren Avenue, Suite 160
Eagleville, Pennsylvania 19403
(610) 271-8053
jeffrey.mayes@monitoringanalytics.com



Rep30

From: Seitz, William <william.seitz@dinsmore.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 07, 2017 10:35 AM

To: Wolf, Jimmy

Subject: FW: ZEN Pdf

Attachments: ZEN Final 01302017 pdf;, ATTO0001.htm

Send this to Kasych/Lehman with note, here is what FE sent me last Monday on their nuclear plant issues,

From: Pine, Ty [mailto:tpine @firstenergycorp.com]
Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 12:14 PM

Tao: Seitz, Willlam

Subject: Fwd: ZEN Pdf

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Noewer, Sharon L." <sihoewer@firstenergycorp.com>

To: "Pine, Ty" <tpine@firstenergycorp.com>

Cc: "Henry, Michelle R." <mrhenry@firstenergycorp.com>, "Grealy, Anne M"
<agrealy@firstenergycorp.com>, "D'Alessandris, Louis M" <|dalessandris@firstenergycorp.com>
Subject: ZEN Pdf

Ty,
As requested, attached is a pdf version of the final ZEN presentation.
Sharon '

Sharon L. Noewer

Director, Market Policy Planning & Analytics
Akron, OChio 44308

330.384.5432 (office)
sinoewer@firstenergycorp.com

x] =

The information contained in this message is intended only for the personal and confidential use of the
recipient(s) named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or an agent
responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that vou have received this
document in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution, or copying of this message is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify us immediately, and delete the
original message,




NOTICE: This electronic mail fransmission from the law firm of Dinsmore & Shohl may constitute an
attorney-client communication that is privileged at law. It is not intended for transmission to, or receipt
by, any unauthorized persons. If you have received this electronic mail transmission in error, please
delete it from your system without copying it, and notify the sender by reply e-mail, so that our
address record can be corrected.
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Rep30

From: Rep30

Sent: Menday, February 13, 2017 10:21 AM
To: Ty Pine {tpine@firstenergycorp.com)'
Subject: ZEN

My notes of our discussion two weeks ago show that you said gas currently has a $14-19/mwH fue! cost and $1-2/mwH
operating cost, while nuclear currently has $7/mwH fuel cost and a $21/mwH operating cost. By my math, the lowest
current gas cost is then $15/mwH as against nuclear’s $28/mwH, though it could be $21/mwH gas as against $28/mwH
nuclear. Either way, the difference of $7-13/mwH is appreciably less than the $17/mwh in your proposal.

Of course | recognize that the $17/mwH has nothing to do with such comparisons, but rather is based on your
interpolation of the environmental benefits of zero carbon emissions. That, however, is not exact science, and it seems
to me that we are entitled to evaluate the proposal on a more conventional cost-benefit basis on numhbers that are not
divorced from reality.

Stated somewhat differently, it would take a substantial price spike in gas fuel cost to make the $17/mwH a beneficial
deal for ratepayers.

And you say?



Rep30

From: Rep30

Sent: Monday, February 13, 2017 10:22 AM

To: Shawn Kasych (shawn.kasych@ohiohouse.gov), Lehman, Ryan
Subject: FW: ZEN

Fyl

From: Rep30

Sent: Monday, February 13, 2017 10:21 AM
To: 'Ty Pine (tpine@firstenergycorp.com)' <tpine@firstenergycorp.com>
Subject: ZEN

My notes of our discussion two weeks ago show that you said gas currently has a $14-19/mwH fuel cost and $1-2/mwH
operating cost, while nuclear currently has $7/mwH fuel cost and a $21/mwH operating cost. By my math, the lowest
current gas cost is then $15/mwH as against nuclear’'s $28/mwH, though it could be 521/mwH gas as against $28/mwH
nuclear. Either way, the difference of $7-13/mwH is appreciably less than the $17/mwh in your proposal.

Of course | recognize that the $17/mwH has nothing to do with such comparisons, but rather is based on your
interpolation of the environmental benefits of zero carbon emissions. That, however, is not exact science, and it seems
to me that we are entitled to evaluate the proposal on a more conventional cost-benefit basis on numbers that are not
divorced from reality.

Stated somewhat differently, it would take a substantial price spike in gas fuel cost to make the 517/mwH a beneficial
deal for ratepayers.

And you say?




Rep30

From: Rep30

Sent: Tuesday, February 14, 2017 11:10 AM
To: Ty Pine (tpine@firstenergycorp.com)’
Subject: ZEN

Aftachments: jimmy.wolf2-9-201718-41-28.pdf

Ty—

1. Lines 76-80 make no sense and something is missing.

2. Not clear to me that only the EDUW’s in FE’s territory are participating in this (lines 114-116).

3. Not clear to me that credits are limited to in-state nuclear plants (lines 195-202 and the 4 lines after line 157,
but | suppose this is to aveid a Commerce Clause problemy.

4. There has to be periodic review of whether $17 is the right number. And $17 may be too high to begin with.
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432nd General Assembly
Reyular Session B. No,
2017-2018

A BILL
T amend section 492602 and te enact setiions
K978.75, 4928751, 4928, 752, 4928.753, 4928.751,
4928.755; 4928.756, 4928.757, 4928.7510,
4987511, 4924.7513; 4928,7514, 4928.751%,
1928,7520, 4928,7521, 49287522, 49287523,
4928,7524, 4928.7525, 4978.7526, 4928,7527,
4928, 7530, and. §928. 7532 aHe-4928-9523 of the
-Rcefvis-é“ci..{fd_'d_é 'r.ggarq_i-ng_.the\ zEro-siiissions

auclear resourte Program.
BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF OHIO:

Sectien 1. That seciion 5928,@2 be amended and saotions
498,75, 4928.751, 4528,752, 4926753, 4928.754, 4928.753,
4976.756,. 4928757, 4928.7510, 4928,7511, 4928.7513, 4928.7514,
4‘9:?.8 JI515,. 4928.7520, 4928,7521, 4928.7522, 4928.7523,
YO28.7524, 4928.7535, 1928.7526, 4928.7557, 4928. 7530, and.
1928, 7532 —end-4828-9593 of the Revised fode be énacted ro read

s follows:

Sec. 4928.{42. If is the policy of this stats te de the

ADHLTG 7. B0

L

W el

11

12
13
i3
15
1H
i7

lg




following throwghout this stite: 19

(A) Ersure the zvailability to conspmers of ddesuate, S
raiilable, safe, effigient; nondiscriminatory, and reasonshliy 21

pyriced retail electric sérvide; i

1By Ensurg thé . availsbility of dribundled and cdupéraple 23

ratail electric servvice tfhat provides donsumers with the 24

suppliey, price; terms, cenditians, and guality options they Zh

elect Lo meet their respective nesdsy 26

{0} Ensure. diversity of eteetrieity the follawitig: 27

e

(1} Blectrieity suppliss end suppliers, by giving 28

COTNSHmMErs affective cholces. oVer the selection of those supplies 2§
and supplisrs ang by engevrading Lhe development of dightribited 30

and small demeration facilities; A1

(2] Reseurces, including zZero~emissions nwolear resources 37 i

as définﬁd-in-sectiﬁn 43?8.?5.@f'the,§evi$ed Code, that provide 33'

fhel-diversity and environmﬁmtal and other benefits. ) 34.

(D} Engauzagg tAnevatieon and market access for cosg- 3k
effective supply— and demand-side retail elécérié service 36
Including, bot not limited to, demand-sidé management, Lime< 3T
differentiated pricing, waste energy recovery systems, smart 38
erid progrems, snd implewentation of advanced mebsring 39

infrastractyrer &0

{8y Encourage cest-effective .and efficient access to 41
information regarding the operation of the tramsmisgion and e
distribution Syﬁtﬁmsicf eiebtric-dﬁilitie& it -prdeEr to promple 43
both sffective customer chelcé of wetall electric service and £4
rhe develppment of performance standards and targets for service g5
gquality for all cobsumers, including anmual échiﬁﬁﬁment-ﬁégbfts 48

wiltten in=plaih Languages : 47

{04172974.D00X } .
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(E?'Enﬂufé that ah electric- utility's transmissien and
distrikution systens arg available to & costomer-generator or
owner oF distributed Qéﬂeratiﬂn, 50 that the cuslomer-generabor

or ownet can market and deliver the eles{ricity it produges;

463} Regbénize the continuing eméergence of competitive
eiectricity-magket$ threugh the developmernt ant implementafion

of flexikle regulatory hrestment, while simulianecusly

“Page 3

CECR

49

5i

51

recogniziny the reed for nuclear enerdy resources, as defined in

section 4828.75 5t the Revised Cods, and réséiices that provide

fuel diversity and environmental and othed benefits;

{H} Ensure effeptive comperition in the provision of

retail elgctiie servies by avoiding anticompetitive subsidies

fiowing from a noncompetitive retail electrid servite to &
competitive retaill €lectric service orf to a product or servicos

other then retail elecbiic service, and vide versa, including by

prohibiting the recovery of any generation-related costs thréugh

distribution or transmission rates)

{1} Ensure ratail electrig service censumers protection
against unreasenable salies practices, warket deficiencies; and

metket powery:

(15 Provide coherent, Lransparent means of giwing
appropriate incentives fo techroleogies that can adant
smccéssfuliy-tprpot@ﬁtial environmental mandates:

(K} Eﬁccufage iﬁpiemeﬁtétibﬁ of distributed Qenexatien
ac£GSSVCuSEdﬁex-classes thravgh regular review and.mpdatiﬁg @f
aéministrative-;ﬁles-guverniﬁg'criticai issies such as, but not

S limited to; ihterCﬁnnectisn.stahdazds, standby charges, and net

meterings

L) Provect at-risk populaticns, ineluding, but not

0417297400051 }

62

68
&2
70
71
12
T3
74
75

76
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limited te, when coéisidering the implementdtion of dhy new.

advanced energyr-ineluding-sere-ohibsions-nubloarEoronices—ay

]

csed-edey 0 Lenewible

gnerqgy rescuice;

{M3 Enccuraqe:thé-educatién of small business owpérs in
this state regarding the bsé of, and encourage the use of;
enetgy efficlerey progiams and altethative energy resdurpes in

thei¥ businesses;

(N} Eacil@tate-the.State‘s-affestivehEsS'iﬁ bie global

SCONGHY ¢

Im carrying out Bhis poliecy, the comigsion shall condider
riles as-they~app1y Fo thi costs qf_eleatric dist:ibutign:
infrastiuetuie, including, Bet pod Thmited to, 1iﬁE'8XtQHHiQnsp

for the pulpose of development in this state.

Page 4
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18

80

g1
.82
g4

87
88
B8
58

91

Sec. 4928.75. s wsed ih sections 4928.75 to 4928.75344 of

“the Revisged. Codex

gz

[R)"Niigléar encrgy resourer" means an-enbidi-dhibosens or-

sperstes g eleciric generation wnit fueled, in whele sy in

part; by.hucléar powetr ond licedised by the nuclear regulatory .

56,

{B)ﬂggﬁﬂ;meéns_the-RJMjlntéchnnEQﬁioh( 1L, pr . dts-

97

FUCCESSeY, |

9%

(¢ "Perorenissions fuolear creditY means the attribubes

assoeiateﬁfwith.éne_mcgawatt'hour-df elactricdty genezateﬂ.hy =

zero-emissions nualsar dpsolubde,

4%y

energy resource thal—se-determned by—thepublio-ubilitios

"Zerpeenigsions puclear Fesource! mesns 3 RUciear

eEiGR 40EE LTS g 402,

e iiicor o i

0472974 DOCKET I
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Bewiseddcdde—Eé-nebry the ¢riterda of sectivh 4928.754 of the

Revissd Coda,

se¢[_4923l?51‘ Thare is:hérgﬁy=cﬁéatéd.a zefsvémiSsiQhS'nUclearrresourCe ERCY)

prograin fm cmab' he'sf&ﬁ& Lo meet Lhs pmiluy gca} ;mﬂd quUzﬁaments under which
fero-gpissions nicledr czedltS gre; purcaased iGe

by”eleéﬁrla @I$t£lbﬂtlﬁn'ﬁtllltlés.@Q'QIQVid& lpngrtern endrgy 168

secuiity snd envirvonmental and sther behefits teo the region and to aik-retail 110

electyic sefvice customers in The siate. Bn electric distribotien 311

‘urdTity in this state that has d sero-emissions fuglesr resource. iz

logated within 3ts certified rerritony shall participate in the 113

program, All eléctric distribution utilities 4n the same holding Iié

company systed shall participate joihtly and ﬂhél* alloéﬂté costs 115

Btrosg all classes: Of sach part1G1pdtlng utxa;ry -gustomers, 118

Sech.4928,752,-The.zerc—em153i6ﬁ$ nucieax EESource-proqzam 117

shall Qperate for swooessive twooyear prcgzam.pexiods beginning 118

-:ﬁw&wﬁaa@SCQﬁméng@nq on aEber-bhe 1313

effective date of this section. 120

Bada., 4928.753. To. q@a&é&:y;n;;@f.p;ng_';:c_i_e‘ reré-enissions 12%

mielssyr Sredits gnder the zetb-emissionsg niclear program, an enbity thdt owns 127

drfﬁgéfafés-a-nuciear-ewer@y-resc&rae-shail file with the public wbilicies 123

e

cofmi gsion a written natlcp var:fylﬂg v that the - res@urcu 124

moeks the ‘criteria, L‘mdet SEation 49?8 754 of the Rmu&eci Code. 195

The fﬁﬁﬁﬁf@?-&ﬂtlty ----- qhail file the written notLue et later than mineLy 129

ddyk after Lhe cammemcement o the 1n1t iat progkam péried er, if 127

ihe regcires has agkt yet Guaiifi ed, not later tbdn ;rlor £, the 18

commencement of a sulisefuent program;perlad_ 174

Sec. 4928:754, A njclear enerqy resouice that sAtisfiessBallaset all of 130

.thé_fﬁllcwihg‘ﬁri&grﬁﬁnégfqaa&ﬁév%ﬂs.15 4. zero-emissiopns nuclear resourcs 131

for purposes oF sevd-emiysions puclédr credits: 132

1A) The resource i5=iptét¢dnhé¢téd;withiﬁ.tﬁé-tﬁansmissiﬁn systen ob PSHJiSS
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{BY PIM he¥ delevminsds the résvurcd is transmission 134

deliverable under 'the hetiics by which PJM caloulates 138

'dellveraailxty for pﬁrpcses-oﬁ-éapacliy planﬁing.dﬁ.a anndethew 136

clowk baqeload basis lﬁuD the: Gﬁlawtvanbn on zong or 70nes of 137

elegtrig d1erﬂbut10n utllltles partzc]patlnq in thL ZEYg- 138

emx331ons nuci?@r résoines pioqram ‘under sections 49?8 75 . Lo 139

A928,.7%323 of the Rev15Pd Cade. 144
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the air qual;ty proflle ol Lha state &ﬂ-whzah e
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st with similar capacity and baseload cheracteéristics as the BAE

resource as of the bime the resourcge commented operation. 145

(B2} K11 of ‘the following eould cecur if the resource _ _ 146

ceaged operation and its cepacily were veplaced st the same lotmtien 147

by the then predominant electric genération source with similar 148

capacity and baséload characteristics as {he resource: _ ;gg_
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Al pellution conbrel Programs, stendards, or gesals is véduced; 187

LY The waThen dig¥ide emissions ihteﬁsit?_of Ele gratesdsn
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deferrals, ekclisions; zilowanced, payments, credits, 160"
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sitig oA fherric that previdés value for emissions nobt produved: by the regoinoe;
: SANLES EABE oL 167

12) Is not whcllYJﬁwnédpby;a-municipal_sgﬁqoagetative' 163

corporation or & group, assedcialion, or consortiym ui theseé _ _ 154

.eorperationsy o ) L 165

13y Did not, duridg = BROgLa, pezlad descrlbed 1n Eéﬁtiﬁﬂ 16

4828, JJ? ot the: Rev1sed Code, rEcdver some or all of the cap*tdl 167

S, Hogrdting costs of the LéSOul?? Lﬁ*ouqh ratpq ;egulaied by ot 168
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Sec&_ﬁ928.755f.Wiih.respeﬁt 0 A wribtten motice filed T

under Section: ¢928.953 of the Revised Code by-rilacing to-a nuclear energy 7Y

resodres located in-this state, any interested person may file: 1

cofunehts with the public utilities commission within twenty days A3

affer the writrel wotice was fiieﬁ. 174

Sec, 4928.756. An eﬁt:ty that wwns o operates G nuclea1 energy reqource
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sactinh 4928 755 of £he R“Vlsed Code,. ot later than ten days AT

ffer the: comnent was filed. _ o 176
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'S@g, 46247518, ®ith pespest to a writien notice Tiled 189

under section 4826.753 4E the Re?i$¢d4Coﬁ@.hywrelatinq”tﬁ;a.ﬁuclaar ERETgy 197

resturce loeiteéd in-another-Gtatedescribed in section 4928754 1D), the riscuiié
-ghall submit o T 181

with its written nofice an enviyorments) study shawing that the 192

reamirce megts the eriteria Under sechion 4928.951 of the 193

Revised Code. ” 144

Seg. 1928 7511, The public ubilitiss commission,. un'déz: a 185

procedu%e Yt mdopts; shall deggrming and 1%su@ ihe approgrwa%e_ . 1963
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aﬁa%hewwﬁtﬁ%e-qualifles undel the CEik e ER:Y 3e”thH 4828754 98
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adopted procedire shall pxgvide the opportunity for comment and 200

-responsg similar taithe_gpp@r&unities-describéd urider seclions 201

4928755 ang 4928.756 of the Revised fode.. B 0

Sec. 4828.7513. A nuclear epergy rescurce determined. under 203

.seqtiaﬂ-%QZB.?ﬁ?.or-4928,7511 of the Revised Code to bg & zeror 204

emidsions nuclear resource shall continie 6 be considered such 205

& respurce For all successive progran periodsuas-lang.as.ﬁha F0E

resotirce coptinues to teet the criteria of divisions (A1, (8), 267

and {E) of section 4928754 of the Ravised Codes 208

Beo. 4928,75l4, Zéfo%emissioﬁ.ﬂutlear;nescurdgﬁ-sﬁali 205

pfﬁVidé.ZEfO;$Mi@5i@nsﬁnucleaf_ﬁrediiﬁ for the Zero-silgsions 210

Qgﬁiﬁar;ﬁesource @fo@ramj'th later phan thifty days-befbre-a_ 217

-prbgfam-periadfcemmenﬁQS} each zero-eniagions pyuclear resource 1z

shall conﬁlrm with the public vtilities commission its lﬂtﬂﬂt ta 213

qmatxnﬂe_tc,commltﬁits.@redgus under_thevproqxam; ' 214

Sean 49281?515,.All.financial_SXatem@htS, financial data, 215

ahnd tvadée seciets submittéd-to or raceived by the publiic an
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EErO- 237
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Sec, 4928,7521. At the same time the public viilivies 531

cémmission Sets the prite for zero-emissions nucleayr dredibs, 23

the commission shall determine the maxinun nuwber of credits fo 243

be purchased By eleciric distribubion stilities during the 2734

EProgrem peried.. The: amount the commission sets shall egual one-. 235

third of the essbined-total "fobal End Uset Corsumption’ in mégawart— 236

~hpurs over the previous two calsndar yeaid ag ghowd on PUCO Form FatY;

Dl of each participating eléectiic distribution wtility's most. 238

regently filed lohg-ternm forecast report. 239

Ber, ARZRUTERD, Mot 1éter'than:séyemjdayaffbilowinglthe 240

\Eiﬁga-nf.eaéh guarter of  a . pregram period, sich fers-emisdiens 251

mug hear. resoufce -shall tradsfer all efnﬁtsgzero—emigsigns._ o z4D

Huelear gredits qenerat&d)that_QQarter to Fh@;puhlic_utilitie$- 243

commissfon, which shall hOid;tha credits dpstruase

~for the _ 244

Fesoureesole purpose of administering the program. i 24T

Se¢., 1928.7523, #Wighin seven diys of the zerc-emissions nugledr reseurce
Eranaferting its wredits, t¥he public ubilitied commission shall = 246

nopify each participating electric didbributicn utility of the P47

total amount of zerg-emissicns nuclear credits. received from Z4AE,

sk

zero-emissions puclear resources. 249
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Rep30

From: Wolf, Jimmy

Sent: Tuesday, February 21, 2017 7:54 AM
To: Ty Pine (tpine@firstenergycorp.comy’
Subject; _ Draft Bill

Attachments: | 132 0723.pdf, LO723-ClL-132.pdf

Good Morning Ty,
i hope you had a good weekend.

Attached is the draft of the ZEN bill. LSC also provided a cover letter stating some potential problems with the bill draft. |
will be showing this to Rep. Seitz today once he arrives in Columbus.

Best,

Jimmy Wolf

Legislative Aide to Representative Bill Seitz
30" House District

614.466.8258
Jlimmy.wolf@ohiohouse.gov



Reviewed As To Form By
Legislative Service Commission

|_132_0723
132nd General Assembly
Regular Session . B. No.
2017-2018
A BILL

To amend section 4928.02 and to enact secticns
4928.75, 4928.751, 4928.7>2, 45%28.753, 4528.754,
4928.755, 4928.7b6, 4928.757, 4928.7510,

4928 _7511, 4828.7513, £928.7514, 4928.7515,
4928_7520, 48928.7521, 4828.7522, 4928.7523,
4928 _7h24, 4928.7525, 4928.7526, 4928.7527,
4828_.7530, and 4928.7532 of the Revised Code
regarding the zero~emissions nuclear resource

program.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF OHIO:

Section 1. That section 4828.02 be amended and sections
4928.75, 4828.751, 4928.752, 4928.753, 4528.754, 4928.755,
4928.756, 4928.757, 49828.7510, 4928.7511, 4928.7513, 4928.7514,
4928.7515, 4928.7520, 4928.7521, 4928.7522, 4928.7523,

40928 .7524, 4928.7525, 4928.7526, 4928.7527, 4928.7530, and
4928.7532 of the Revised Code be enacted to read as follows:

Sec. 4928 02. It is the policy of this state to do the

following througheout this state:
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(A} Ensure the availability to consumers of adequate,
reliable, safe, efficient, nondiscriminatory, and reascnably

priced retail electric serviece;

(B} Ensure the availability of unbundled and ccmparable
retail electric service that provides consumers with the
supplier, price, terms, conditions, and quality cptions they

elect to meet thelir respective needs;

(C) Ensure diversity of edestrieity—the following:

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

(2} Resources, including zero—ecmissions nuclear resources

as defined in section 4928.75 of the Revised Code, that provide

fuel diversity and environmental and other benefits.

{D) Encourage innovation and market access for cost-
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
informaticn regarding the operation of the transmission and
distribution systems of electric utilities in order to promote
both effective customer choice of retall electrlc service and
the development of performance standards and targets for service
quality for all ceonsumers, including annual achievement reports

written in plain language;

(F} Ensure that an electric utility's transmissicn and
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distribution systems are available to a customer-generator or
ovwner of distributed generation, so that the customer-generator

or owner c¢an market and deliver the electricity it produces;

(G} Recognize the continuing emergence of competitive
electricity markets through the development and implementaticn

of flexible regulatory treatment, while simultanecusly

recognizing the need for nuclear energy resources, as defined in

section 4928.75 of the Revised Code, and resources that provide

fuel diversity and environmental and cother benefits;

{H) Ensure effective competition in the provision of
retail electric service by avolding anticompetitive subsidies
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

distribution or transmission rates;

{I) Ensure retail electric service consumers protection
against unreasonable sales practices, market deficiencies, and

market power;

{J) Provide ccherent, transparent means of giving
appropriate incentives to technolcegies that can adapt

successfully to potential enviromnmental mandates;

(K) Enccurage implementation of distributed generation
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
this state regarding the use of, and enccurage the use of,
energy efficiency programs and alternative energy resources in

their businesses;

(N} Facilitate the state's effectiveness in the global

economy .

In carrying out this pclicy, the commlssion shall consider
rules as they apply to the costs of electric distribution
infrastructure, including, but not limited teo, line extensions,

for the purpose of development in this state.

Sec. 4928.75. As used in secctions 4928.75 to 4528.7532 of

the Revised Code:

(A} "Nuclear energy rescurce" means an electric generation

unit fueled, in whole or in part, by nuclear power and licensed

by the nuclear requlatorv commission.

{(B) "PJIM" means the PJM Interconnection, L.L.C., or its

SUCCessor.

{C) "Zero-emissions nuclear credit" means the attributes

associated with one megawatt hour of electricity generated bv a

zero—emissions nuclear resource.

(D) "Zero—emissions nuclear resource™ means a nuclear

enerqgy resource that meets the criteria of section 4928.754 of

the Revised Code.

Sec. 49828.751. There i1s herebv created a zero—emissions

nuclear rescurce program to enable the state tgo meet i1ts pelicy

goals and requirements under which zero-emissions nuclear

credits are purchased by electric distribution utilities to
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provide long-term enerqv security and environmental and other

benefits to the region and to retail electric service customers

in the state. An electric distributicon uvtility in this state

that has a zerc-emissions nuclear resource located within its

certified territory shall participate in the program. All

electric distributicn utilities in the same holdirg compan

svstem shall participate dointlyv and shall allocate costs acrgss

all classes of each participating utility's customers.

Sec. 4928.752. The zerco—-emissions nuclear resource program

shall operate for successive two—vear program periods beginning

with the initial program period commencing on the effective date

of this secction.

Sec. 4928.753. To provide zero-emissions nuc_ear credits

under the zerc—emissions nuclecar program, an entity that owns or

operates a nuclear energy resource shall file with the public

utilities commission a written notice verifving that the

resource meets the criteria under section 4928.754 of the

Revised Code. The entitv shall file the written notice not later

than ninetv davs after the commencement of the initiazl program

period or, if the resource has neot vet gualified, not later than

nrior to the commencement of a subsequent program period.

Sec. 4928.754. A nuclear energy resgurce thaz satisfies

all of the following criteria is a zerc—emissions nuclear

regource for purposes of zerco-emissions nuclear credits:

(&) The resocurce is interconnected within the transmission

system of PJM.

{B] PJM determines the resource is transmission

deliverable under the metrics by which PJM galculates

deliverability for purpcses of capacity planning on a round-the-
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clock baseload basis into the transmission zone or zones of 134
electric distribution utilities participating in the zero- 135
emissions nuclear resource program under sections 4828.75 to 136
4628.7532 of the Revised Code., 137

(C) For in-state nuclear energy resources: 138

(1) The resource has benefited the alr quality profile of 138
the state more than the predominant electric genesration source 140
with similar capacitv and baselcad characteristics as the 141
resource as of the time the rescurce commenced operation. 142

{2y All of the following couid occcur if the resource 143
ceased operation and its capacity were replaced at the same 144
location by the then predominant electric generation source with 145
gimilar capacity and baselcad characteristics as the resource: 146

(a) The abilitv of the state, or region of the state, to 147
maintain or decrease existing intensity of fine perticulate 148
matter or to complv with one or more state or federal air 14¢
pollution'control programs, standards, or goals is reduced. 150

{(b) The carbon dioxide emissions intensitv of the state is 151
negatively impacted. 152

(c) The abilityv of the state to maintain or decrease 153
existing intensity of carbon monoxide, lead, ground-level ozone, 154
particulate matter, nitrogen oxide, or sulfur dicxide is 155
negativelv impacted. 156

(D) For all other nuclecar energy rescurces, cach such 157
regource is shown to provide no less than the same level of 158
environmental benefits to the state as nuclear energy resources 158
located within the state, pursuant to the reguirements in 160

diwvision {(C) of this section. 161
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{E) The rescurce, on or after January 1, 2017:

(1) Did not receive from ancother state tax exemptions,

deferrals, exclusions, allowances, pavments, credits,

deductions, or reimbursements calculated in whole or in part

using a metric that provides value for emissions not produced by

the resocurce;

{2) Ts not wheolly owned by a municipal or cooperative

corporation or a group, association, or consortium of those

corporations; or

(3) Did not, during a program period described in secticn

4828.7572 of the Revisgsed Code, recover some or all of the capital

or operating costs of the resource through rates regulated by a

state.

Sec., 4928.755, With respect to a written notice filed

under section 4878.753 of the Revised Code relating to a nuclear

cenergy resource located in this state, anv interested person may

file comments with the public vtilities commission within twenty

davs after the written notice was filed.

Sec. 4928.756. An entitv that owns or cperates a nuclear

energy resource may file with the public utilities commission a

response to any comment made under section 4928.755 of the

Revised Code, not later than ten davs after the comment was

filed.

Sec. 49828.757. Not later than fifty davs after the filing

of 8 written notice under section 4928.753 of the Revised Code

relating to a nuclear energy resource located in this state, the

public utilities commission shall designate a resource that

satisfies the criteria in section 4928.754 of the Revised Code

as a zero—emissions nuclear rescurce and issue an order
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consistent with that designation. If the commission does not

issue an order in the time regquired by this section, the

resource shall be deemed to be a zero—emissions nuclear

resource.

Sec. 4928.7510. With respect to a written notice filed

under section 4928.753 of the Revised Code by 2z nuclear energy

resource described in division (D) of section 4528.754 of the

Revised Code, the rescurce shall submit with its written notice

an envircomnmental study showing that the resource meets the

criteria under secticn 4928.754 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 4828.7511. The public utilities commission, under a

procedure it adopts, shall determine and issue the appropriate

order regarding whether a nuclear encrgv rescurcse described in

division (D) of section 4928.754 of the Revised Code gualifies

under the criteria in section 4978.754 of the Revised Code as &

zero—emissions nuclear resource. At minimum, the adopted

procedure shall provide the opportunity for comment and response

similar to the opportunities described under sections 4928.755

and 4928.756 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 4928.7513. A nuclear energy rescurce determined under

section 4928.757 or 4928.7511 of the Revised Code to be a zerg-

emissions nuclear rescurce shall continue to be considered such

a resource for all successive program pericods as long as the

resource continues to meet the criteria of divisigns (A), (BY,

and (E) of section 4528.754 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 4828.7514. Ferpo—cmission nuclear resources shall

provide zero-emissions nuclear credits feor the zero-emissions

nuclear resource program. Not later than thirtv davs before a

program period commences, each zero-emissions nuclear regource

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

utilities commission for purposes of satisfving the c¢criteria as

a zero—emissions nuclear rescurce and any information taken for

any purpose from the statements, data, or tTrade secrets are not

public records under section 149.43 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 4928.7520. Not later than sixty davs after the

initial program pericd commences and not later than thirtv davs

before a subsequent program period commences, the public

utilities commission shall set the price for zero—emissions

nuclear credits applicable for the period. For the initial

program period the price shall be seventeen dollars per credit,

For each subsegquent program period, that price shall be adjusted

for inflaticon using the gross domestic product impliclit price

deflator as published by the United States department of

commerce, bureau of economic analysis, index numbeys 2007=100.

Sec. 4928.7521. At the same time the public utilities

commission sets the price for zero-emissions nuclear credits,

the commission shall determine the maximum number of credits to

be purchased by electric distribution utilities during the

program pericd. The amount the commissicn sets shall equal one-~

third of the total "Total End User Consumption” in megawati=~

hours over the previous twe calendar vears as shown on PUCO Form

D1 of cach participating electric distribution utilitv's most

recently filed long-term forecast report.

Sec. 4928.7522. Not laterx than seven days follewing the

close of each guarter of a program period, each zerg—emissions

nuclear resource shall transfer all of its zerp-enissions

nuclear credits generated that gquarter to the pub_ic utilities
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commission, which shall hold the credits for the scle purpose of

administering the program.

Sec. 4528.7523. Witnin seven davs of the zero-emissions

nuclear resource transferring its credits, the public utilities

commission shall notify each participating elegtric distribution

utility of the total amount of zerc—emissions nuclear credits

received from zerc-emissions nuclear resources.

Sec. 4928.7524. 21l participating electric distribution

utilities shall purchase all zerc-emissions nuclezr credits

transferred to the public utilities commission up to the maximum

number of credits determined under section 48%828.752]1 of the

Reviged Code. The commission shall allocate the amounts to be

purchased by each participating utilityv based on the total

"Total End User Consumption" in mecgawatt-hours over the previous

two calendar vears as shown on PUCO Form D1 of each

participating electric distribution utilitv's most recentlwy

filed long-term forecast report. Each participating electric

distribution utility shall pav the credit price for sach cgredit

purchased.

Sec. 4928.7525. The public utilities commission shall

deposit all payvments for credits into the zerco—-emissions nuclear

resources fund created under sectign 49%28.7532 of the Revised

Code.

Sec. 4928.7526. Within seven davs of receipt of utility

pavment, the public utilities commission shall pav to each zero-

emissions nuclear rescurce the amount paid for each of the

resource's zero—emissions nuclear ¢redits purchased from the

zero—emissions nuclear resources fund.

Sec. 4928.7527., Credits purchased by participating
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electric distribution utilities mav not be transferred, sold, ozr

assigned to any other entity.

Sec. 4928.7530. Facn participating electric distribution

utility shall recover any and all direct and indirect costs for

the purchase of zero-emissions nuclear credits through a

nonbyvpassable rider charged to all of its retail electric

service customers, which rider shall be established within sixty

davs from the effective date of this segtion.

Sec. 4928.7532. There is hereby created the rerc-emissions

nuclear resources fund that shall be in the custoedyv of the

treasurer of state but shall not be part of the state treasurv,

The fund shall consist of all money collected by the public

utilities commission from purchases of zero—emissions nuclear

credits. The amounts deposited into the fund shall be used fo

pay the credit purchase price to the rescurces that generated

the credits. 211 investment earnings from the fund shall be

transferred by the treasurer to the general revenue fund in the

state treasury.

Section 2. That existing section 4928.02 of the Revised

Code 1s hereby repealed.
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OHIO LEGISLATIVE SERVICE COMMISSION

Clifford A. Rosenberger, Speaker of the House Larry Obhof, President of the Senate
Mark Flanders
Director
L-132-0723
February 17, 2017
The Honorable William Seitz
Ohio House of Representatives
Statehouse
Columbus, OH 43215

Dear Representative Seitz:

You asked LSC staff to draft a newer version of [_132_0606 for you with changes
from an interested party. Your aide told us to draft the language "as is" even though
you are aware that there are some problems with the language. The resulting bill
(1.132_0723) is attached.

As you review the bill, please note that the bill's potential problems include the
following:

e The bill's criteria for determining a zero-emissions nuclear resource
(R.C.4928.754) includes a false distinction between nuclear energy
resources (ZENR) that are in-state and all other nuclear energy resources
(presumably "out-of-state”" resources). The standards for both are the
same. While this approach may meet the intent of the requestor, the bill's
efficacy may be compromised. First, it creates ambiguity because a ZENR
must meet all of the criteria of R.C. 4928.754. But, the false distinction
makes that impossible since all the criteria must be met, which requires
the nuclear energy resource to be in both the in-state category and the all
other category. The result will cause confusion in application of the most
important element of the bill. Secondly, the bill references the "all other
nuclear energy resources” portion of the ZENR criteria to identify a
nuclear energy resource for determining whether the resource qualifies
under the criteria. This has an element of circularity that can lead to
misinterpretation.

Vern Riffe Center ® 77 South High Street, Ninth Floor  Columbus, Ohic 43215-6136 & Telephone (614) 466-3615
www.lsc.ohio.gov



Representative Seitz
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R.C. 4928.757 requires the Public Utilities Commission to designate an
in-state nuclear energy resource as a ZENR no later than 50 days after
filing. If the Comunission doesn't so designate in that time period, the
resource is deemed a ZENR. This language makes it clear that the
Commission really has no duties here--it must designate all in-state facilities
that file. But, that conclusion would be at odds with the logical assumption
that some consideration must be made as to whether the resource meets
the bill's criteria. If the intent is that the entity's filing is all the evidence
needed to prove the criteria are met, the bill could avoid misinterpretation
by simply declaring all in-state nuclear energy resources for which a filing
is made are ZENRs. You may also want to consider whether filings are
even necessary and simply state that all in-state resources are ZENRs for
purposes of the zero-emissions nuclear credit (ZENC) part of the bill. You
could save any Commission duties regarding ZENR review for all the
other resources.

To qualify as a ZENR, a nuclear energy resource must safisfy the ZENR
criteria. All other nuclear energy resources (not the in-state resources),
however, must qualify under the ZENR criteria as the Commission
determines (R.C. 4928.7511). In addition, the ZENC requirements regarding
exclusion of information from public records only addresses information
submitted to satisfy ZENR requirements (R.C. 4928.7515). The difference in
language could lead to misinterpretation.

With respect to the various seven-day time periods regarding the ZENC
provisions of the bill, "not later than" and "within” are both used
(R.C. 4928.7522, 4928.7523, and 4928.7526). Consistency in usage may
avoid misinterpretation in the future.

Please contact me at (614) 644-7788 or brian.malachowsky@lsc.ohio.gov if you
have any questions or concerns.

min

Attachment:

1.0723-CL-132.docx

Sincerely,

Birian P, Wa&wﬁow:&ky

Brian D. Malachowsky
Research Associate
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